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CITY OF SANTA FE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING O
CONVENTION CENTER ADMINISTRATIVE CONFERENCE ROOM
Wednesday, March 4, 2015, 2:00 P.M. to 4:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
APPROVAL OF AGENDA
APPROVAL OF MINUTES
a. Wednesday, February 4, 2015
EXTERNAL AUDIT MATTERS
a. Completed Audits within the Last 4 Years with Open Findings (Liza Kerr)
b. Schedule and Status
c. Discussion
a. Park Bond Audit
b. BDD Operations Audits
c. Lodger’s Tax Audit
d. Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Audit Report 06/30/2014
e. Santa Fe Railyard Audit Report 06/30/2014
d. Report from External Audit Committee (Clark de Schweinitz and Marc Tupler)
REVIEW OF FINANCIAL REPORTS FROM CITY
a. Financial Reports (Hazeldine Romero)
b. Update from Finance Director (Oscar Rodriquez)

INTERNAL AUDIT MATTERS (Liza Kerr)

a.
b.

C.

d.

Completed Audits within the Last 4 Years with Open Findings
Schedule and Status
i. Discussion
a. ITT Follow-Up Audit
b. Public Utilities Audit
General Information
a. Fraud, Waste and Abuse Hotline
b. Risk Assessment/ Audit Plan
Report of Internal Audit Subcommittee (Hazeldine Romero and Cheryl Pick Sommer)

UNFINISHED BUSINESS
a. Committee Annual Report to the Finance Committee / Discussion of ideas and points to cover (Clark

de Schweinitz)

NEW BUSINESS - Proposed Ordinance by Councilor Maestas — For Discussion
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 2-22 SFCC 1987 TO RENAME THE “INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT”
THE *ACCOUNTABILITY AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT": ESTABLISH A POSITION OF
A FRAUD AUDITOR TO INVESTIGATE FRAUD, WASTE AND ABUSE ALLEGATIONS AND INCREASE
EFFICIENCY THROUGHOUT CITY OPERATIONS BY IDENTIFYING OPPORTUNITIES FOR RECOVERY OF
REVENUE OR OTHER ASSETS; AND MAKING SUCH OTHER CHANGES AS ARE NECESSARY TO CLARIFY
CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE ACCOUNTABILITY AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE.

a.

(Councilor Maestas) (Kelley Brennan)

10. NEXT MEETING DATE

a.

Wednesday, April 1, 2015

11. ADJOURNMENT

Persons with Disabilities in need of accommodations,
contact the City Clerk’s office at 955-6520 five (5) working days prior to the meeting date.
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SUMMARY INDEX

CITY OF SANTA FE AUDIT COMMITTEE

March 4, 2015

ITEM ACTION TAKEN PAGE(S)
1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLL CALL Quorum Present 1
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA Approved as amended 1
4, APPROVAL OF MINUTES
+  February 4, 2015 Approved as amended 2
5. EXTERNAL AUDIT MATTERS
a. Completed Ext. Audits with Open Findings Report/Discussion 9-10
b. Schedule and Status Reported 10-11
¢. Discussion
1) Park Bond Audit Reported 1
2) BDD Operations Audits Discussion 11
3) Lodger's Tax Audit Discussion 1112
4) SWMA Audit Report 6/30/14 Discussion 12
5) Railyard Audit Report 6/30/14 Discussion 12
d. Report from External Audit Committee No Report 12
6. REVIEW OF FINANCIAL REPORTS FROM CITY
a. Financial Reports Reported 36
b. Update from the Finance Director Reported 3-6
7. INTERNAL AUDIT MATTERS
a. Completed Int. Audits with Open Findings Reported 12
b. Schedule and Status - Discussion
1) ITT Follow-Up Audit Reported 12-13
2) Public Utilities Audit Discussion 13
¢. General Information
1) Fraud, Waste and Abuse Hotline Discussion 13
2) Risk Assessment Audit Plan Reported 13
d. Report of Internal Audit Subcommittee. No Report 13
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a. Committee Annual Report to Finance Committee Discussed 14
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a. Ordinance Amendment to rename the Committee ~ Discussed 6-9
10. NEXT MEETING DATE: April 1, 2015 14
11. ADJOURNMENT Adjourned at 4:15 p.m. 11-14
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1.

MINUTES OF THE

CITY OF SANTA FE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

March 4, 2015
2:00 p.m. ~4:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

A regular meeting of the City of Santa Fé Audit Committee was called to order by Mr. Clark de

Schweinitz, Chair on this date at approximately 2:00 p.m. in the Convention Center Administrative
Conference Room, Santa Fé, New Mexico.

ROLL CALL
Roll call indicated the presence of a quorum as follows:

Members Present: Members Absent:
Clark de Schweinitz, Cheryl Pick Sommer
Hazeldine Romero, Vice Chair

Marc Tupler

One Vacancy

Others Attending:

Liza Kerr, Internal Auditor

Oscar Rodriguez, Finance Director
Kelly Brennan, City Attorney
Elizabeth Martin, Stenographer

NOTE: Allitems in the Committee packet for all agenda items are incorporated herewith to these minutes

by reference. The original Audit Committee packet is on file in the Audit Department.

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mr. Tupler moved to approve the agenda, subject to moving things around to accommodate

guests. Ms. Romero seconded the motion and it passed by unanimous voice vote.

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
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* February 4, 2015

Ms. Romero requested the following changes to the minutes:

On page 2, line 127 where it says “the staff stated, insert “in the CAFR that.” For clarification on page
8, line 397, “Ms. Valencia said they ..., replace “they” with “she and Ms. Romero.” On line 403, it says “the
investment report was redundant,” insert “because the Audit Committee already receives this report.” On
line 404, it says “the other was a debt service report,” and should change “she” to “we.” On page 11, line
500, should be reworded to say “Ms. Kerr provided a copy of the 2014 Railyard audit report and
commented that she had just received it." Line 497 should be moved after that where “Chair de Schweinitz
said the Committee should review clarify the Railyard audit report for the next meeting.” Add a comment,
“Mr. Tupler had a concern about the Flying Star bankruptcy filing and that might have a financial effect on
the city.”

Ms. Romero moved to approve the minutes of February 4, 2015 as amended. Mr. Tupler
seconded the motion and it passed by unanimous voice vote.

Chair de Schweinitz announced that Loretta Valencia had to resign and took a job with the State
Auditor's office. They wanted her very quickly. Her letter of resignation is in the packet [attached as Exhibit
A]. Judge Yalman has been contacted. If anyone here knows an interested person, we need to get back to
full strength.

Mr. Rodriguez asked if the member would have to be a city resident.

Chair de Schweinitz said no, just a state resident.

Ms. Kerr said Carolyn Martinez had already contacted her and she knows Ms. Sommer so Ms. Kerr will
contact Ms. Sommer as a reference. Since she is a CPA, she couldn't attend the meeting as the tax
deadline is near.

Chair de Schweinitz said he would send a note to Loretta Valencia thanking her for her service.

5. EXTERNAL AUDIT MATTERS
a. Completed Audits within the Last Four Years with Open Findings (Liza Kerr)
Ms. Kerr asked if the Committee wanted to move this item off the agenda permanently.
Chair de Schweinitz agreed that would be a good idea.

The Committee agreed to modify the agenda and consider #6 next.
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6. REVIEW OF FINANCIAL REPORTS FROM CITY (considered out of agenda order)
Chair de Schweinitz explained this is a second draft of the Financial Report.

Mr. Rodriguez said this is the second ever monthly financial report. [A copy of the report is attached to
these minutes as Exhibit B.] Mr. Rodriguez identified the various items in the report and said, “The bottom
line appears to be that we are doing ok.” Revenue is slightly above budget, primarily in the Water
Department. The report shows what was approved and what was amended. The budget overall went up
$22 million. Expenditures went up almost double that amount. Revenues seem to be coming in above
budget. Much of what is coming in under budget will be made up in other areas; property tax, lodgers' tax,
etc.

Ms. Kerr asked how he resolved the beginning balance issue.

Mr. Rodriguez said it was still open for suggestions on how to treat it. There have been some additions
to the report addressing that. Not everything in the beginning balance was cash but there were no
receivables to consider. To be clear, DFA requires a certain minimum amount and it is pretty liberal, just
looking at things from the standpoint of liquidity.

Mr. Rodriguez is projecting revenues will come in up 7% from budget. The main variances are the
proceeds from bond sales.

Chair de Schweinitz asked if what is labeled “grants” is really grants or capital outlay money.

Mr. Tupler asked if that is what the state is giving Santa Fe.

Mr. Rodriguez agreed and explained that everything the City applied for was included because the City
was confident it would be granted. The City could apply for more but those would come with strings and
matching funds. About 90% are recurring grants and the biggest one is transit and transportation. After

that is highway construction. There are many other small grants.

Ms. Kerr asked why he wasn't calculating a projected variance on revenue from State down and
expenditures from capital purchases down. It looks like there is a variance.

Mr. Rodriguez said at this stage and the rate they are coming in he didn't think there would be a
change. He has asked the departments to give us a plan. The General Fund is broken up by departments.
Among all of the revenue streams, the GRT is the largest piece.

Mr. Tupler asked if they are classified correctly.

Mr. Rodriguez agreed. The transfer from those funds to construction and other funds is appropriate.

Mr. Rodriguez said the Gross Receipts are coming in just below budget. Property taxes are above
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budget. Water Utility receipts are above what was budgeted. Bond proceeds almost doubled.
Ms. Kerr asked what comprises the other taxes.

Mr. Rodriguez said it includes liquor tax, real estate contract sales, etc. The biggest is franchise taxes.
Ambulance fees are significantly below but he expected revenue to come in at budget and expenditures a
little below. He briefly addressed the reason for lower ambulance revenues.

Mr. Rodriguez said he prefaced his remarks to Council with the need to get departments to start using
these protocols.

Ms. Kerr said this is really helpful. Mr. Tupler agreed.

Mr. Rodriguez noted that the airport, recreational complex and convention center were all running with
negative balances and at some point, the Council needs to make a decision whether the MRC is really an
enterprise fund. It has never functioned as an enterprise fund. Those three funds are generating most of
the negative balances although the convention center is getting better. The convention center revenues are
going up very fast and that is not reflected in this report.

He said Mr. Randall has a challenge to use those revenues in some way before the new budget is
developed.

Mr. Rodriguez summarized that this report is a draft to get the format and methodology right. He hoped
eventually to have two layers with one showing projected expenditures and projected cash (Liquidity). That
will get better and he would be better able to give the Committee projected expenditures. A spike at the
end of year is bad planning. He suggested it might show an increase in the summer and down in winter but
this tremendous spike is bad planning.

Mr. Rodriguez said the last piece is the cash report. The challenge is having some 600 funds out there.
For a city the size of Santa Fe, there should be about 200 funds. There are all kinds of reasons. it has to do
with folks in the past not having a good a grip on finances so they created funds. The other reason is our
software which creates funds from projects. It would be a lot better insight into our operations for field and
upper management to use cost centers. Our system does not consolidate cash.

Chair de Schweinitz asked who had the authority to create all these funds.

Mr. Rodriguez said it is the department heads and he is encouraging those departments to not create
different funds. The system does show a balance of cash on hand which now is about $17 million.

Ms. Kerr noted that Economic Development has a significant negative cash balance of $284,000 and
asked what is going on.

Mr. Rodriguez said on Monday he took this item to Council. Economic Development is funded by
proceeds of a number of projects that generate profits such as the business incubator. That money is held
in a fund. As expenditures happen in anticipation of money the City runs negative balances. Then land is
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sold and it recharges the fund because those profits are restricted. The Council budgeted for an amount
without the cash there. Mr. Rodriguez informed them that Finance is not doing that anymore and he was
not going to sign budget adjustments that are not tied to cash. They will have to go to Council for the
appropriation of the money. So far, they haven't appropriated any.

In response to Mr. Tupler, Mr. Rodriguez said their revenue comes from various sources. One is land
sales in Tierra Contenta.

Ms. Kerr said it would be good to see that in a report.

Mr. Rodriguez said he is trying to show that in ending days of cash and now is 59 days. It has been a
challenge in getting them to understand it. The actual cash is about $52,000 above the state minimum
requirement.

Chair de Schweinitz asked what kind of reception he received from the Finance Committee.

Mr. Rodriguez said the Finance Committee Chairman is better informed as to how we are financially.
There was not a lot of conversation with Council. The same is true with department heads. Incredibly, they
have never done this before. He could not believe that there was no monthly financial report. That explains
why Teresita has been so strict and conservative.

Mr. Tupler said this type of reporting is critical and a giant improvement and a very useful tool.

Chair de Schweinitz said the Committee appreciates the inclusion of what Ms. Romero and Ms.
Valencia requested.

Mr. Rodriguez said next month is the last practice run.

Ms. Kerr asked regarding the beginning balance what he recommended. Mr. Rodriguez said right now
it does tie in to the financial statement but it could bear some caveats. He was not accepting the
explanation he was getting from staff.

Mr. Rodriguez briefly explained the Bates Act of New Mexico that says state and local governments are
not obligated to pay something if Council determines there is no money for it at the end of the year.

Ms. Brennan clarified that money spent during the year has to be money that was appropriated in the
year.

Mr. Rodriguez agreed and it expires at the end of the year.
Ms. Brennan noted there are some exceptions like bonds and insurance.
Mr. Rodriguez said that instead of saying that the cash carries over, it should be closed and then

appropriated anew.
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Mr. Tupler would like to see a separate fund that holds restricted cash which would be like our
liabilities.

Chair de Schweinitz agreed - good point.

Mr. Tupler commented that having restricted and unrestricted cash gives a better understanding of our
cash situation.

The Committee briefly discussed the beginning balance issue further.

Mr. Rodriguez said at some point, when they have a better handle, he would be interested in any of the
Audit Committee’s recommendations regarding beginning balance.

Chair de Schweinitz asked the members and Ms. Kerr to work on that before the next meeting.

Chair de Schweinitz pointed out that General Counsel is here that the Committee needs to let her talk
too.

Mr. Rodriguez said he would follow up in email and excused himself from the meeting.

Chair de Schweinitz modified the agenda again to hear from Ms. Brennan.

9. NEW BUSINESS

a. Proposed Ordinance Amendment - Renaming the Committee to Accountability and
Performance Management Department and adding Fraud Auditor

Chair de Schweinitz welcomed Ms. Brennan and introduced her to the members.

Ms. Brennan thanked the Committee for allowing her to speak now. She wanted to give the Committee
some history of this proposed ordinance. The Committee has the working draft and fiscal impact report
[attached as Exhibit C]. This reflects many comments from the Audit Committee and Ms. Kerr. It also has
some from Councilor Maestas, who is interested in the Office of Inspector General. Council asked her to
look atit. The information she gathered, under certain circumstances, could be a good thing for
municipalities. She could not find any comparison to municipalities of the size of Santa Fé. She looked at
Albuquerque also. She had a conversation long before with Ms. Kerr and her work and whether it would be
beneficial to have a forensic auditor to help her accomplish all of her responsibilities. At the same time, the
fraud, waste and abuse hotline was being pursued by the City. It seemed the best way was to start with
small steps to see if there was a basis to establish the office of inspector general. The City needed to give
Ms. Kerr the resources she needed and take the opportunity to amend the ordinance and provide for a
forensic auditor. These things came together.

Ms. Brennan said most of the changes to this proposed ordinance came from comments from the
Committee and Ms. Kerr. The Council heard her report and recommendation and decided that starting with
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a phased approach was best. Part of her concern was about these roles and how they would affect
employment practice and collective bargaining agreements. She didn't want to lose time frames, given the
legal requirements. She made some changes, including taking the whistle blower statute out of the
ordinance but it still applies because it is a statutory requirement. Councilor Maestas has taken a strong
interest in this and the Audit Committee will be assisting with the effort,

Ms. Kerr had her emailed timeline. This is on the agenda for the Finance Committee on March 16 and
City Council on March 25. In light of that, she asked when the Audit Committee needed to get
recommended changes to her.

Ms. Brennan said they should be sent in a week but if that was impossible, they could adjust that
schedule.

Chair de Schweinitz said he and Ms. Romero spent time on this already and have some comments. In
his mind, he thought the new title is a bit too global. They thought it should at least keep the term “audit” in
there.

Ms. Brennan said Councilor Maestas was interested in considering this title but she thought the
Committee’s suggestion was right.

Ms. Romero pointed out that the term “audit” is clear defined and this name is kind of vague.
Chair de Schweinitz thought the fraud and abuse hot line is not even up yet.

Ms. Kerr said she talked to the City Manager about not having a press release yet but it is officially
going into the payroll on Friday.

Chair de Schweinitz pointed out that we don’t know to what extent there is fraud and abuse yet. It
seems this might be premature.

Ms. Brennan agreed. That part of the value of creating a position would be useful in any event.
Mr. Tupler asked what title other cities used.

Ms. Brennan said Albuquerque created an Office of Inspector General and an Accountability
Committee but Santa Fe did not feel the City should start with that.

Ms. Kerr asked if that was now defunct in Albuquerque.

Ms. Brennan had not heard that.

Chair de Schweinitz was not sure it was defunct but they had some big problems complying with the
IPRA - (inspection of public records).

Ms. Brennan said they actually called her and talked about that. There is an opinion of the Attorney
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General on that point.

Chair de Schweinitz noted she pulled that 30-day part.

Ms. Brennan agreed. That was one of her changes.

Chair de Schweinitz's other concern about who oversees the City Auditor. This proposed ordinance
says the Department would oversee her. He realized that meant there is no person to oversee her. The
current ordinance has the same language that there is some entity out there overseeing her. The Audit
Committee doesn't see itself as overseeing her because it is advisory.

Ms. Brennan you are right.

Ms. Kerr offered to go through it and do word changes with Ms. Romero and Chair de Schweinitz.

Chair de Schweinitz thought Councilor Maestas seems keen on auditing as a way to bring back money
to the City. It worried him that the City might be moving toward a money return angle and getting away from

the risk-based stuff.

Ms. Brennan didn't think that was the intention of the Council but it was rather to gain efficiencies and
to control loss. So saving money might not be the way to express that in a report.

Chair de Schweinitz thought in some ways that was corrected on page 15 and mitigate the tendency
toward cost reimbursement as opposed to risk.

Ms. Kerr said she talked with Ms. Brennan about this paragraph and considered taking out “cost
savings.”

Ms. Brennan suggested the word “opportunity” might have a role to play. Is there a mechanism to
adopt?

Chair de Schweinitz said he could help with the language. The time line seemed pretty fast to him. He
asked if the City Auditor would be the supervisor of new forensic position.

Ms. Brennan thought so. This would be a position that could grow and change.

Ms. Romero said they talked about the City Auditor would be the main position with internal auditors
under the Auditor and one of those is the forensic auditor. She asked if the current internal auditor position
would become the City Auditor once this ordinance is approved.

Ms. Brennan said that is still up in the air.

Ms. Kerr referred to the last sentence on page 17 that said, “The Governing Body may determine
whether an Inspector General office is required.” She suggested that “is required” be changed to “would be
beneficial.”
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Ms. Brennan supported that.

Chair de Schweinitz noted there is one section in the current ordinance about the types of audits to be
done: financial, performance, etc. He asked if it should have the definition of what a forensic audit is.

Ms. Kerr said the definitions come out of governmental audit standards (GASB) so that would just fall
under special audits.

Ms. Romero said it was on page 8.

Ms. Kerr said that would fall under category 4 - Special investigations.

Chair de Schweinitz said with a new position like this Ms. Kerr will control what work is undertaken.
Ms. Brennan agreed. The management relationship is for Ms. Kerr. Otherwise conflicts arise.
Chair de Schweinitz asked if Ms. Brennan wanted Audit Committee members to attend the meeting.
Ms. Brennan said that would be fine. If we can stick to this time frame that would be great.

Ms. Romero asked about the changes made here.

Ms. Kerr said she would put them in as tracked changes.

Ms. Romero agreed and asked that she send them back to the members.

Chair de Schweinitz thanked Ms. Brennan for attending.

Ms. Brennan left the meeting.

The Committee went back to the approved agenda.

5. EXTERNAL AUDIT MATTERS
a. Completed Audits within the Last Four Years with Open Findings (Liza Kerr)

Chair de Schweinitz said this item should be limited to the ones the Committee is going to talk about
each time. The Committee should spend some time on the Santa Fe Railyard Audit.

Ms. Kerr said she did split the reports between external and internal. The first was External Audits
completed with the last four years with open findings. [The report is attached to the minutes as Exhibit D.]
She pointed out that there are only sixteen open findings now. The four findings from the CAFR won't be
cleared until the audit is done next year.
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Ms. Romero didn’t agree with not doing anything with those findings. She wanted to make sure there is
progress and not suddenly report back that they are there at the end of the year.

Ms. Kerr said she would periodically report on them. She recalled they started with 200 at the
beginning and were now down to just a handful. The forensic audit on parking had nine open findings. She
talked with Mr. Gurulé about it yesterday and he told her all of those findings were now cleared. She would
work with him on presenting the evidence.

With Lodger’s Tax is down to one open finding. Shelter Plus is down to one open finding also.

Mr. Tupler asked what Shelter Plus is.

Ms. Kerr said it had to do with housing.

Ms. Kerr said BDD operations just had one finding. She agreed to pull the findings any time the
Committee wanted to look at the detail.

Chair de Schweinitz reminded the Committee that its duty is to review the findings and make
recommendations to the Finance Committee concerning the corrective action plan. The Audit Committee
relies on Ms. Kerr to bring them.

Ms. Kerr agreed and now that there are only 16 she could bring them in.

Ms. Romero thought it wasn't necessary to bring them in but to have a report on their status.

Ms. Kerr said that is what she is doing now.

Mr. Tupler asked what the mechanism is for the department head providing the Auditor with the
evidence.

Ms. Kerr said it depends on the type of finding is and gave an example.
Mr. Tupler asked if this database allows PDF documents

Ms. Kerr said it doesn't but she has asked in the budget for a database that would do that and follow
the GAP principles but the database would cost $31,000.

b. Schedule and Status of External Audits

Ms. Kerr said her report is in the packet [attached as Exhibit E]. The Status Review includes the Santa
Fe Civic Housing Authority, Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency, The Santa Fe Railyard
Community Corporation, the 2014 Lodger's Tax Audit, the 20108 Park Bond Audit and the Santa Fe
Buckman Diversion Project.
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Also in the packet is the Civic Housing Audit Report [attached as Exhibit F].  Ms. Kerr had intended to
have the SWMA Audit in the packet but it was not. She will make sure it is | the packet for the next meeting.

Chair de Schweinitz said the Audit Committee needs to take action on the Civic Housing audit but
perhaps didn’t need to do so at this meeting. He did not see any findings for the Railyard Audit.

Ms. Kerr said the Railyard has a large lease with the City and she recommended documenting that in
the minutes and the fact that the Committee reviewed that.

Chair de Schweinitz suggested doing that for next time. He asked her to report on the Railyard and
Civic Housing for next time.

Ms. Kerr said the Committee has Civic Housing but not SWMA

¢. Discussion
1) Park Bond Audit

Ms. Kerr said the Park Bond Audit will be presented to the Finance Committee on March 30 and to City
Council April 8th,

Mr. Tupler noted this is a high profile and some Audit Committee members should be there for the
report. He would like to be at the March 30t Finance Committee meeting. He was certain that Bette Booth
and Anna Hanson would be there.

Ms. Kerr said they have most of their findings completed and will group them into categories. There
are a lot of them.

2) BDD Operations Audits

Ms. Kerr said they are supposed to have the entrance conference on March 11.

3) Lodgers’ Tax Audit

Ms. Kerr said at the last Finance Committee meeting, the Councilors asked to track licenses for short
term rentals. David Tapia said there are 374 licenses issued for short-term rentals as of June 30, 2014.
However, the list they gave Barraclough and Associates only had 115 listed. He said there was no way to
track that because the payment might come from a different name than is on the license. She is
encouraging them to try to come up with some way to tie payments to the license.

After a brief discussion, Ms. Kerr agreed to follow up on it.
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Ms. Romero suggested Barraclough put that in their audit report as a finding.

Ms. Kerr thought that was a great idea.

4) Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Audit Report 06/30/2014

This agenda item was not considered and postponed to the next Audit Committee meeting.

5) Santa Fe Railyard Audit Report 06/30/2014

This agenda item was not considered and postponed to the next Audit Committee meeting.

d. Report from External Audit Committee (Clark de Schweinitz and Marc Tupler)

There was no External Audit Committee report.

7. INTERNAL AUDIT MATTERS (Liza Kerr)
a. Completed Audits within the Last Four Years with Open Findings

Ms. Kerr reported this is still in progress. She referred to her printed report [attached to these minutes
as Exhibit H]. She hoped to get more time to deal with it.

For False Alarms, she reported there is a new Chief of Police and new Deputy Chiefs. She is meeting
with them tomorrow in a group with Finance staff. Councilor Rivera is planning to propose a new ordinance
revision. There is a fine of $10 per day and the meeting will resolve that.

She plans to send Mr. Gurulé a list of the open findings for Parking. She is asking him to tell her how
those findings have been cleared and show her the evidence or proof.

b. Schedule and Status
l.  Discussion
a) ITT Follow-Up Audit
Ms. Kerr referred to her printed report [attached as Exhibit |].
Regarding the Data Center ITT Follow-Up Audit, Ms. Kerr said she is working on the open findings. It is
in progress. She has the evidence she needs and just needs to do the report.
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b) Public Utilities Audit

Ms. Kerr said the water audit will be next. She talked to the Water Director earlier today.

¢. General Information
a) Fraud, Waste and Abuse Hotline

Ms. Kerr received a notice from the State Auditor's Office regarding a hot line complaint involving a
person at the water utility. She was able to pull the back-up to substantiate that this is an unfounded
complaint. She will report that substantiation to them later today at their office to close it out. She talked
with the City Manager about entering this in to our hotline.

Mr. Tupler asked if the complaint came from the state hot line about an employee.

Ms. Kerr agreed. It was a fraud issue and she investigated it and determined that it was unfounded.

Chair de Schweinitz asked if the reason she had to do that comes from the ordinance.

Ms. Kerr said she didn’t know. She would like to talk about that with the Committee.

Ms. Romero wondered if that should be turned over to the State Police and have them investigate it.

Chair de Schweinitz was worried about the process for Ms. Kerr. He recalled that she had sent a fraud
alert to state auditor and asked if that should come back to the Committee.

The Committee briefly discussed the implications and the processes for the hot fine.

b) Risk Assessment / Audit Plan

Ms. Kerr said it is time for this again. It is due now and the process is smoother this year. This is the
3 year. She will be conducting interviews over the next couple of weeks.

d. Report of Internal Audit Subcommittee (Ms. Hazeldine Romero and Cheryl Pick Sommer)

There was no report.

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
a. Committee Annual Report to the Finance Committee - Ideas and Points to Cover (Clark de
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Schweinitz)

Chair de Schweinitz promised to have a draft on April 1. He asked the members to let him know any
points anyone wants to include in the annual report.

Ms. Romero asked if he had an outline

Chair de Schweinitz said he has some points written out. It was going to speak to timelines, in depth
implementation of our own ordinance, internal auditors audit plan, participation, the fraud and abuse hot
line starting, the concern about Ms. Kerr being pulled into too many administrative tasks and assignments.

Ms. Kerr explained that the Finance Committee passes a resolution that assigns more work to her and
all of it takes more of her time.

Ms. Kerr said she will be doing an amendment to the audit plan.

Chair de Schweinitz asked her to send that draft to him as soon as she could. He will in turn send out a
draft to her and the Committee by email for comments.
10. NEXT MEETING DATE:  Wednesday, April 1, 2015

Ms. Romero said she would not be present for the April meeting or the June meeting.

Ms. Kerr said she would not be present for the May meeting.

11. ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Tupler moved to adjourn the meeting. Ms. Romero seconded the motion and it passed by
unanimous voice vote.

The meeting was adjourned at 4:15 p. m.

Clark de Schweinitz, Chair

Submitted by:

Ol 8 s

Carl Boaz, for Carl G. Boaz, kﬁ

Audit Committee March 4, 2015 Page 14
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Loretta E. Valencia, BA, MA
Certified Public Accountant

2369 Brother Abdon Way

Santa Fe, NM 87505
(505) 982-7838

February 27, 2015

Honorable Ann Yalman

City of Santa Fe Municipal Court
2511 Camino Entrada

Santa Fe, NM 87507

Honorable Ann Yalman,

This letter is to inform you, Mayor Javier Gonzales, the City of Santa Fe Council and the
Audit Committee Members that I must resign from my position as a member of the Audit
Committee effective today at SPM.

The reason for my resignation is that I have very recently accepted a position with the
New Mexico Office of the State Auditor. Serving on the Audit Committee will pose a
conflict of interest with this position.

I have truly been honored to serve on the Audit Committee for the last six months. I want
to express my gratitude to the members of the committee who are very committed,
intelligent and progressive individuals. I will certainly miss interacting with them and
being a part of their accomplishments.

Thank you for your continued service to the citizens of Santa Fe.

Sincerely yours,

Digitally signed by Loretta E. Valencia
M DN: en=Loretta E. Valencia, o, ou=CPA,
I_O retta E . Va I e n C I a email=lev100@comcast.net, c=US

Date: 2015.02.27 12:50:11 -07°00"

cc: Clark de Schweinitz, Chairman, City of Santa Fe Audit Committee
Members, City of Santa Fe Audit Committee
Honorable Mayor Javier M. Gonzales
City of Santa Fe Council
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPORT: DECEMBER 2014
The following report is a summary of financial results for the City. It provides summarized information
on how the City’s financial sources and uses have performed to date by major categories and
Departments. Significant financial developments and budget variances are highlighted and explained.
The report also includes a projection of revenues and expenditures to the end of the fiscal year based on
the rate of activity already realized.

Highlights

At the end of the second quarter, the City’s financial performance as a whole appears to be on course
with the FY 2014-2015 Budget Plan. Not counting the $18.7 million in bond proceeds that were
received this fall, the revenues appear to be coming in 1% above budget, with lower than expected Gross
Receipts Taxes (GRT) being made up by higher than expected utilities revenue. Meanwhile,
expenditures are occurring 7% below budget. Contractuals, Repairs & Maintenance, and Supplies are
the main areas where the level of expenditures indicates lower and/or slower activity than expected. The
experience year-to-date has brought no major development that would indicate a significant
unanticipated shortfall. Looking forward, there are a number of points that staff are monitoring:

¢ Inthe General Fund, the City’s principle operating revenue source, GRT, is trending 1.1% below
what was budgeted, indicating a $0.6 million shortfall by the end of the fiscal year. A number of
other important revenue sources are also under-performing, including Ambulance Fees.
Fortunately, Property and Franchise taxes are outperforming what was budgeted, and at this
point in the year appear to be making up the shortfalls in the other revenue streams. Total
revenue in this fund is projected to come in slightly (0.11%) above budget.

e The methodology used to project financial performance to the end of the year indicates that
expenditures in the General Fund as a whole will come in 5% below budget. Staff checked with
each of the interested departments and found no new information that would advocate a
significant change in this projection. The principal departments contributing to this under-
expenditure are Police, Community Development, Public Works and Community Services.
Together, they will appear to account for more than $2.8 million in savings. The principal areas
that are expending under budget are Contractuals and Repairs & Maintenance.

¢ In response to requests by some members of the Finance Committee, we are including for the
first time a fund summary of the three Enterprise Funds that have been showing negative
balances for some time. Two of these funds appear to be improving their ending balance. Only
Airport is showing a significant revenue shortfall ($0.7 million) above what was budgeted,
although expenditures are projected to come in at budget.
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ALL FUNDS - OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY & PROJECTIONS

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 2014/2015
2013/2014 APPROVED AMENDED YEAR PROJECTED | PROJECTED
DESCRIPTION ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET TO DATE* YEAR-END VARIANCE
BEGINNING BALANCE 155,378,212 146,227,772 146,227,772 146,227,772 146,227,772
Revenues
Gross Receipts Tax 95,725,848 97,244,078 97,244,078 50,192,778 96,670,768 -1%
Property Tax 9,251,086 8,225,005 9,595,713 3,045,734 10,638,183 11%
Lodgers' Tax 8,376,475 8,000,000 8,000,000 5,455,578 9,020,076 13%
Other Taxes 4,938,789 5,116,152 5,116,152 1,525,013 6,123,750 20%
Licenses & Permits 2,378,207 2,641,500 2,641,500 1,169,346 2,633,293 0%
Ambuiance Fees 3,511,498 2,000,000 2,000,000 776,704 1,787,577 -H%
Insurance Premiums 24,993,908 27,522,846 27,522,846 13,680,189 27,004,357 2%
Parking Fees 3,927,368 4,392,963 4,392,963 2,072,907 3,987,437 -9%
Recreation Fees 3,247,009 3,356,843 3,356,843 1,424,274 3,145,183 -6%
Solid Waste Fees 18,034,108 18,206,951 18,206,951 9,015,145 19,091,619 5%
Wastewater Fees 11,000,820 11,327,400 11,327,400 5,534,264 12,261,687 8%
Water Fees 34,511,650 38,365,611 38,402,140 18,326,489 40,644,345 6%
Other Fees/Services 22,239,989 15,713,920 15,677,911 7,599,145 16,734,013 7%
Fines & Forfeitures 1,724,194 2,002,350 2,002,350 645,057 1,387,925 -31%
Miscellaneous Revenues 17,788,118 5,654,898 15,161,570 30,359,552 33,829,985 123%
Interest on Investments 977,130 776,013 776,013 296,524 725,798 -6%
State Grants 2,906,658 5,757,225 3,013,830 1,832,065 3,013,830 0%
Federal Grants 6,157,366 3,975,232 5,908,298 4,405,445 5,908,298 0%
SF County/Other Grants 2,759,589 6,120,514 6,925,951 5 6,925,951 0%
Transfers In 60,913,862 54,230,413 64,932,104 28,780,166 64,932,104 0%
Subtotal - Revenues 335,363,675 320,629,914 342,204,613 186,136,380 366,466,181 7%
TOTAL RESOURCES 490,741,887 466,857,686 488,432,385 332,364,152 512,693,952
Expenditures
Salaries 69,868,698 74,322,442 74,562,717 33,952,197 71,528,146 4%
Benefits 34,421,888 36,901,786 35,901,416 17,647,290 34,631,595 -4%
Contractual Services 20,956,652 22,768,812 25,946,761 15,676,122 15,084,782 -42%
Utilities 11,164,646 13,415,660 11,808,092 8,627,507 10,649,454 -10%
Repairs & Maintenance 4,115,112 5,836,753 5,633,191 3,312,322 4,400,061 -22%
Supplies 8,318,764 10,138,885 10,134,428 5,398,250 8,156,083 -20%
Insurance 28,167,219 32,355,629 32,307,603 15,822,441 28,207,882 -13%
Other Operating 21,503,186 18,605,477 19,118,494 9,750,801 17,152,786 -10%
Capital Purchases 5,683,446 8,654,024 16,742,771 12,147,983 16,742,771 0%
Land & Building 11,976,090 8,900 1,160,295 667,360 1,160,295 0%
Debt Service-Principal 22,943.220 20,291,015 20,291,015 1,949,000 20,291,015 0%
Debt Service-Interest 16,854,003 16,248,036 16,248,036 8,251,048 16,248,036 0%
Trans fers Out 88,541,191 66,598,203 102,159,262 35,614,185 102,159,262 0%
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 344,514,115 326,145,622 372,014,081 168,816,506 346,412,169 1%
ENDING BALANCE - 146,227,772 140,712,064 116,418,304 163,547,646 166,281,783

*includes year-to-date actuals plus encumbrances; excludes CIP Sunds




FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPORT: DECEMBER 2014

GENERAL FUND SUMMARY & PROJECTIONS

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 2014/2015
2013/2014 APPROVED AMENDED YEAR PROJECTED PROJECTED
DESCRIPTION ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET TO DATE* YEAR-END VARIANCE
BEGINNING BALANCE 8,121,688 9,305,512 9,305,512 9,305,512 9,305,512
Revenues:
Gross Receipts Tax 52,621,883 53,836,678 53,836,678 27,509,782 53,241,123 -1%
Property Tax 3,288,358 3,262,577 3,464,591 1,092,096 3,814,489 10%
Franchise Tax 2,873,554 3,145,000 3,145,000 533,652 3,684,714 17%
Other Taxes 468,660 490,000 490,000 236,687 592,950 21%
Licenses & Permits 2,346,669 2,628,000 2,628,000 1,154,058 2,596,444 -1%
Ambulance Fees 3,511,498 2,000,000 2,000,000 776,704 1,787,577 -11%
Planning/Land Use Fees 207,451 271,400 203,900 152,226 323,774 59%
Recreation Fees 467,169 490,000 490,000 215,881 476,725 -3%
Reimbursed Expenditures 5,944,541 5,397,995 5,397,995 2,632,752 5,397,995 0%
Other Fees/Services 206,804 235,800 235,800 65,472 174,388 -26%
Fines & Forfeitures 506,527 544,700 544,700 222,038 517,967 -5%
Miscellaneous Revenues 62,904 149,000 149,000 21,357 56,506 62%
Interest on Investments 49,918 29,038 29,038 13,344 32,661 12%
State/Other Grants 73,578 - 109,840 51,952 108,245 -1%
Transfers In 3,155,921 3,291,762 4,141,762 1,720,881 4,141,762 0%
Subtotal - Revenues 75,785,437 75,771,950 76,866,304 36,398,883 76,947,320 0%
TOTAL RESOURCES 83,907,125 85,077,462 86,171,816 45,704,395 86,252,832
Expenditures:

Community Development Department 1,188,575 1,295,819 1,398,325 832,294 1,097,256 22%
Community Services Department:

-Administration Division 424,594 593,537 660,501 515,117 516,611 -22%

-Library Division 2,586,901 2,603,177 2,603,203 1,388,859 2,496,634 4%

-Senior Services Division 2,224,573 2,374,548 2,374,548 1,187,486 2,374,760 0%

-Youth & Family Division 675,405 754,120 754,216 394,651 753,964 0%
Finance Department 5,551,101 3,986,326 3,992,931 2,066,581 3,820,023 -4%
Fire Department 14,829,280 14,614,959 15,464,959 8,168,263 15,220,133 -2%
General Government 5,568,378 5,547,392 5,750,682 2,889,630 5,312,710 -8%
Human Resources Department 834,723 831,127 831,127 490,578 880,812 6%
Information Technology and

Telecommunications Department 3,198,547 3,349,676 3,418,088 1,848,295 3,238,195 -5%
Land Use Department 3,811,855 4,049,442 4,051,230 1,913,570 3,865,678 -5%
Police Department 20,392,955 22,977918 23,067,553 10,847,180 21,505,785 -1%
Environmental Services / Graffiti 147,121 299,723 299,723 127,332 270,234 -10%
Public Works Department:

-Administration Division 82,565 31,625 31,625 26,774 36,498 15%

-Facilities Maintenance Division 2,689,873 2,615,200 2,611,448 1,456,398 2,573,239 -1%

-Parks, Trails & Watershed Division 5,221,566 5,956,498 5,998,839 3,122,022 5,826,456 -3%
-Recreation Division 2,285,419 2,596,169 2,600,819 1,365,927 2,413,540 -7%
-Streets & Drainage Division 422,654 496,926 496,926 226,836 461,562 -7%

-Traffic Engineering Division 2,465,529 2,566,274 2,566,770 1,671,176 2,268,407 -12%
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 74,601,613 77,540,456 78,973,513 40,538,970 74,932,496 5%
ENDING BALANCE 9,305,512 7,537,006 7,198,303 5,165,425 11,320,336
City Council-Mandated Minimum

General Fund Balance' 6,136,549 6,050.312 6,169,630 6,169,630

General Fund Ending Balance -

Egquivalent # Days of Operation 46 38 35 59

“includes year-1o-date actuals plus encumbrances

Yminimum balance defined as 1.12 budgeted annual General Fund expenditures excluding transfers (30 days)
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SUMMARY & PROJECTIONS: FUNDS WITH NEGATIVE PROJECTED BALANCES

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 2014/2015
2013/2014 APPROVED AMENDED YEAR PROJECTED | PROJECTED
DESCRIPTION ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET TO DATE* YEAR-END VARIANCE
MUNICIPAL RECREATION
COMPLEX FUND [5600]
BEGINNING BALANCE (1,149,920) (1,168,973) (1,168,973)) (1,168,973) (1,168,973)
Revenues -
Recreation Fees 965,545 1,012,237 1,012,237 576,465 1,272,991 26%
Reimbursed Expenditures 4,847 4,000 4,000 2,505 5,559 39%
Parks & Recreation Rentals 45,006 25,200 25,200 14,036 41,986 67%
Other Rentals 22,858 23,000 23,000 11,990 28,099 2%
Miscellaneous Revenues 43,074 47,000 47,000 18,192 50,825 8%
Transfers In 95,306 197,605 297,605 98,802 297,605 0%
Subtotal - Revenues 1,176,637 1,309,042 1,409,042 721,990 1,697,065 20%
TOTAL RESOURCES 26,717 140,069 240,069 (446,982) 528,093
Expenditures
Salaries 273,504 364,553 364,553 165,873 349,606 -4%
Benefits 119,105 141,132 141,132 62,978 129,745 -8%
Contractual Services 146,288 185,978 185,978 76,683 145,109 22%
Utilities 172,350 152,067 152,067 150,683 161,972 %
Repairs & Maintenance 19,027 33,926 40,480 18,841 35,426 -12%
Supplies 45955 50,671 144,671 21,331 86,047 41%
Insurance 1,976 2,334 2,334 1,167 2,334 0%
Other Operating 187,199 219,172 218,618 151,307 213,002 -3%
Capital Purchases 147,519 159,209 159,209 149,681 159,209 0%
Debt Service-Interest - - - 184,226 184,226 100%
Transfers Out 82,766 - - - - 0%
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,195,689 1,309,042 1,409,042 982,769 1,466,676 4%

ENDING BALANCE [5600 1,168,973

1,168,973

938,584)

AIRPORT FUND [5800]
BEGINNING BALANCE (159,552) (418,538) (418,538) (418,538) (418,538)
Revenues:
Airport Fees 690,959 825,268 856,759 106,471 198,272 -77%
Airport Rentals 44,093 14,140 14,140 5,067 13,055 -8%
Other Rentals 139,129 170,000 170,000 49,929 128,647 -24%
Miscellaneous Revenues 15 - - - - 0%
State Grants - 10,000 10,000 - 10,000 0%
Transfers In 400,001 582,646 582,646 291,323 582,646 0%
Subtotal - Revenues 1,274,198 1,602,054 1,633,545 452,790 932,619 -43%
TOTAL RESOURCES 1,114,646 1,183,516 1,215,007 34,252 514,082
Expenditures
Salaries 772,000 623,006 623,006 332,306 646,298 4%
Benefits 368,408 309,305 309,305 167,144 313,470 1%
Contractual Services 88,990 90,650 114,556 59,369 89,353 -22%
Utilities 68,018 62,680 62,680 61,157 50,004 -20%
Repairs & Maintenance 18,471 37,737 38,101 22,155 32,992 -13%
Supplies 30,354 34,786 34,222 19,893 28,864 -16%
Insurance 32,933 50,992 50,992 24,777 37,773 -26%
Other Operating 154,010 163,139 163,339 79,804 165,047 1%
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,533,184 1,372,295 1,396,201 766,604 1,363,802 2%
ENDING BALANCE [5800] (418,538) (188,779) (181,194) (732,352) (849,720)

*includes year-to-date actuals plus encumbrances; excludes CIP funds



FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPORT: DECEMBER 2014

SUMMARY & PROJECTIONS: FUNDS WITH NEGATIVE PROJECTED BALANCES

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 2014/2015
2013/2014 APPROVED AMENDED YEAR PROJECTED | PROJECTED
DESCRIPTION ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET TO DATE* YEAR-END VARIANCE
SF CIVIC CONVENTION
CENTER FUND (5100}
BEGINNING BALANCE 1,715,482 544,979 544,979 544,979 544,979
Revenues -
Civic Center Fees 185,318 - - 142,657 314,134 100%
Reimbursed Expenditures - - - 8,223 18,250 100%
Other Fees/Services 18,418 - - 7,765 16,034 100%
Rentals & Concessions 917 420,000 420,000 - - -100%
Sales Revenue 84 - - 2,450 2,947 100%
Miscellaneous Revenues 13,218 - - 6,701 18,721 100%
Interest on Investments 15,229 7,199 7,199 4,344 10,633 48%
Transfers In 3,428,571 3,794,793 3,794,793 1,897,397 3,794,793 0%
Subtotal - Revenues 3,661,755 4,221,992 4,221,992 2,069,536 4,175,510 -1%
TOTAL RESOURCES 5,377,237 4,766,971 4,766,971 2,614,515 4,720,489
Expenditures :
Salaries 351,226 382,574 382,574 181,088 373,903 2%
Benefits 173,732 190,262 190,262 99,262 189,272 -1%
Contractual Services 250,772 149,638 149,638 118,549 149,218 0%
Utilities 310,421 238,500 251,500 236,118 264,346 5%
Repairs & Maintenance 60,607 232,189 232,189 87,781 145,758 -37%
Supplies 50,753 92,599 92,599 69,740 68,832 -26%
Insurance 31,676 19,815 19,815 9,908 19,815 0%
Other Operating 111,048 134,080 121,080 65,473 102,982 -15%
Land & Building - 3,900 3,900 - 3,900 0%
Debt Service-Principal 1,175,000 1,235,000 1,235,000 - 1,235,000 0%
Debt Service-Interest 2,179,500 2,123,187 2,123,187 1,061,594 2,123,187 73
Transfers Out 137,522 137,522 765,248 646,487 765,248 [
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,832,258 4,939,266 5,566,992 2,575,998 5,441,461 2%
ENDING BALANCE [5100] 544,979 (172,295) (800,021) 38,517 (720,971)

*includes year-to-date actuals plus encumbrances: excludes CIP funds
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FY 2014-15 Budget vs. Projections - All Funds
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TREASURY REPORT
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Fund
Type

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPORT: DECEMBER 2014

City of Santa Fe

Second Quarter Cash Balance Comparisons

Type of Account

Audit Cash
Balance
06-30-2014

Restricted
State
Mandated
*minimum
balance*

Restricted for
Debt Payment/
Actuarial
Reserve/
miscellaneous

Committed-
Accts
Payable &
Escrows

Total Cash
Available
06-30-2014

Cash Bal Cash Bal
General Ledger General Ledger
09-30-2014 1213114

H
iMajor Government Funds

Special

venue Government Funds

General Government

CAP - Capital Equipment Reserve 129,598 4,352 125,246 122,286 113,370
MTG - Mortgage Refund Residual 8,361 - - 8361 8373 8382
FEE - Franchise Fee 1,038 8,137 (6,199) (24,635)]  (@3771),
NS “Economic Deveopment 319627 31,275 687 (133,486) (284,434).
LDG - Lodger's Tax Funds 2,983,884 558,641 2,425,243 3,884,808 4,162,174
SPL - Other Special Revenue Funds 451,541 451,541 483,387
SFB - Santa Fe Business hcubator 32,937 32,937 32,988 33,024 P
GRT - 1/2% Gross Receipts Tax 1,298,770 1,208,770 1,460,027 1,692,783
CHD - Child Care Center - - (1,282) -
Public Safety
ANM - Animal Services 147,189 323 146,866 153,567 150,964 /
BVIG - Emergency Services Funds 717,277 5,203 712,074 1,146,440 1,004,282 :
ENV - Environmental Services 180,932 = 180,032 52,805 291,034
LAW - Law Enforcement Grants 2,249,599 125,088 2,124,511 2,449,801 2,662,356
HOS ~ Affordable Housing Program ()} 0) © T
Public Works b
CON - Resource Conservation 1,810 1,810 1,810 1,810
DRN - City Drainage Projects 25,736 5,110 20,626 22,766 (67,538)
FP- frpact Fee Projects 1,481,147 : 1,481,147 1,635,915 1,754,219
TRN - Transportation Grants 219,406 5,315 214,001 191,362 193,558
Community Development -
COM - Communtty Development Grants 1,032,982 60,049 972,033 1,228,262 1,017,487
SEN - Senior Grants 184,358 9,105 175,253 52,841 372,863
" " Culture and Recreation -
HIS - Historic Preservation Grants 157,639 - 157,639 161,697 156,782
LB - Library Grants 401,177 - 250,000 60,250 90,927 430,966 450,969
NEA - NEA Grant 77) @7) 7,423 77):
PLA - Plaza Use Fund 96,162 96,162 114,186 ""98,065 |
PUB - Public Faciltties Purchases 56,262 66,262 56,349 T 56,410
QUA ~ Qualtty of Life Project 141,426 7,705 133,721 169,062 219,773
REC - Recreation Grants 846,282 121,318 724,964 755,618 824,654 |
””” TEA - Land Development 1,672,971 - 1,572,971 1,575,045 1,674,090
130,102 1,029 129,073 127,465 127454
;90 :038.380: ;
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Restricted Restricted for

Audit Cash State Debt Payment/ Committed- Total Cash Cash Balance Cash Balance
Fund Type of Account Balance Mandated Actuarial Accts Available General Ledger General Ledger
Type 06-30-2014  *minimum Reserve/ Payable & 06-30-2014 09-30-2014 123114
balance' miscellaneous Escrows
[Capital Projects Government Funds | I L ‘
: CP - CP Re-aliocation 181,433 - 181,433 202,420 218839
CON - Resource Conservation 2,505,509 -, 2,505,509 2,500,800 282203 :
RNV ~Buiiding Renovation Projects 291,283 ' 67,815 223468, 676619 343661.
i PRJ - Other CP (512,948) (512,948)' (512,948) (513,028).
Public Works ‘ o

""I"ARL - Beautif. of Major Arterials 106,715 5,305 101,320 6302, 61389,
BND - Bond Aquisition Funds 79,494 o o 79,494 79494 79494
DRN - City Drainage Projects 134,366 4125 130,241 27177 122513
PAV - City Paving Projects 3,831,198 391,416 . 3»,439,782_#% 3282684 2253267
RVR - Santa Fe River Channel 32,507 32,507 . ‘_“32,507“ viv o 32,507
$IG - City Signalization Projects 406,011 77,670 T328.341 235,285 140,572 ¢
STR- City Street Constr. Projects 3,530,031 ' 14,818 3,516,113 3,464,491 3,457,390 :
WUK~ City Sidew alk Projects 508,785 R 508,651 401,811 392970
ZIA - Zia Road Street Lighting 151,301 - C 151,301 142746 109,129
] Mc'\ormunity Development : e o
HOS - Affordable Housing Program 1,000 71,000 | 1,000 1000
PUC - Public Care Facilties 1,687,156 1,687,156 16780251 1537412
Culture and Recreation o . )

ART - Art for CP Projects 339,984 17,0187 322,966 302,186 | 275638

PRK - City Parks Imprvit. 9,853,803 724,839 9,128,064 7,765,732 5,772,742

146,307 -
57,119
ETTRCE

146,307 246,345
57,119

239,289

Enterprise Funds

VAT - Wastew ater Enterprise 20,646,606 180,312 206,292 673,603 19,586,399 | 21,782,262 22,685,599
WTR-Water Enterprise 90,334,614 -1 6,017,797 | 2,337,114 81,979,703 98,466,559 102,354,281
S0 - Soiid Waste Management 6,849,406 171,616 108,990 70,505 6,498,295 6,965,540
UTL ~Ufiities Administration 3,676,216 - - 3,676,216 2,962,610

T TRRL < Railyard Properties 972,392 - 118,386 104,426 749,580 1,138,619 | 1,078,906
SWY - Santa Fe Convention Enterprise 3,126,762 - 49,366 475,489 2,601,907 4,443,330 4,008,368
CSF - College of Santa Fe 2,160,852 - 2,160,852 2,738,170 1,974,204
MUN - Municipal Recreation Complex (841,334) 34,132 (875,466) (386,507) T(171,564)
PAR - Parking Enterprise 1,216,488 9,932 1,206,556 1,417,689 1,235,451
BUS - Transit Bus Enterprise 4,059,993 120,939 3,939,054 6,969,827 g
AR~ Airport Enterprise (92,036) 119 (92,155) (421,298) (672,467)

117,928 1,600,931

1,566,763 1,478

Internal Service Funds

RSK - Risk Management 2.288,404 2,167,549 69,726 51,120 1,575,350
T FH - Santa Fe Healthidentai 5,776,720 2,465,974 563,950 2,746,787 5,572,634
WRK -~ Workers Compensation 5,456,164 4,134,729 8,800 1,312,635 5,797,747
SLB - AFSCME Sick Leave Bank 214,890 214,690 179,187
FUL - Fire Union Sick Leave Bank - - (13,004);
8 NUL - Non Union Sick Leave Bank - T - 9,758
PUL - Police Union Sick Leave Bank '
oo o ;

H
Overall Totals

10



DECEMBER 2014

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPORT

%96° 41

wun mn

mpe«-v—.cw

£ EN.N roN

cmh v«m g §

\aN

WIS vS90597_ § %EG L §61'19€'C _$§ %299 88Y'YOV'T _§ I%eyl- z02'sszz __$ §09'282C _$
; SUUOW BAJRIPLING
| peg069T  $ %Ly | SLO'9YS'E $ %GED BIY'VEY'S $ %ZL0 18's87°c $ %8Tt- 9.8°792'c § S/EJ0 1404 (€SI
1%00'00}- e $ %98'LL 050’658 $ %))- 0/6'028  $ %€ 0SE'19E  $ [%65°7)- 591’29z $ sunp ;
| %0000 (T swsge ewzer  Soeh  LWWEZ S %0 19646} $ 1%byOL- orggeL 8 RN ]
%00°001- - $ %889 S0LST S %0l ol'0vZ $ we 195202 $ %l0°L2 ovie 8 ldy
%00°001- s §.Km mm\.om_ $ %iT 296'8G1 $ %91 L19'szl $ %l6°61- 6eL'8vl $ yasey
%00°001- - ,\.Rm:t oveerl s UG zEsyl  $ % 98L'8E)  $ %016 s96'08, $ Aerugey »
wzer mﬁ zie L %EGSL oeLe6Z S %GZ  1Z8pess_ $ %9 1€6'90Z _ $ %00°}¥ oos'sl . $ Kienuep
#ZeZT “ol9'sze Jo%6E'S2- mrert S s 0SE'961  § %S 89991 $ %ETLE oLl s Jaquazeq
%zl 9z 1 80z'682 $ %98 v5E'29€ $ %l 69L'1€E  $ %6 OSL'SEC  $ %0Z'VE 2e6'99e  § JequenoN
. ep9LlY S %00VZ  eely  $ %) £98'SYe  $ 1%0! OLE'EVE  $ %8GT1- svecie  $ 189090
T eevos 968's6E  § %P ore'osy  § %S sze'oy  $ %l0'G- veggey  § Jequieldag
jee0'oey  § l%e'e- ov0'88E $ %8 L2070 $ %Y eLE'8Er  $ %8Le 806'6ly ¢ snbny
%hLT 652198 $ [%pyEL _60L'kse $ %9 log'soy  § %S SYeoeE  $ %e- coLeve  $ finp
SSOUIED % SIL0Z-L0Z | SSOUUED % ¥10Z-E10T SSOT/UIED % £10Z-ZL0Z | SSOYUIRD %! 21021102 | SSOYUED % | 11020107
Awpuopy Jea) |easid Alpuopy JeoA |edsid Alpuow JeaA jessid Ayuop JeoA |eosid JesA jeosid WUOR
Xel cmmﬂou_ %€ 18jUaD UORUBAUOD
%96t zy'ves'e 8 %EC)- . €00°L51'E $ 1%29'9 ¥86'502'c _ $ \%evl- 986'000'€ _ $ LE1'050°E §
SUUO aAgejnwngD
ZLY'VES'E $ %L¥l 210°'8ZL'y $ %SE9 roc'es9'y $ |%TL0 £9L18sy $ zeg'ere'y $ 51830 11884 [e3s5]d
%0001 . $ %ot , gov'aLy $ il jog6'ley  $ %8 009’18y S 1%69YL: E5E6ve  $ .
%00'00}- - $ 1 %68'T VZEOIE | $ %E| 228'862 $ %0 ev6'e9c  $ ozi'so.  $ Aey
%00°004- - %889 ¥18'ZVE $ %9 092'028  $ lne syl $ oev'ssz  $ o udy
w0000 1 - SIMOLEL 80N $ %iT 66’112 $ %0l- 4 LTI soe'gel  $ yaew
1%00°004- o %sTT . vBL'86L $ %S | 628'¢6) $ %8 8yZ¥el $ 182102 $ Aerugay
weey BE6'0LY %ES'SL eLL'seE  $ WGZ SI6'SPE  $ %9 806'5.C  $ 199'092  $ Aenver
%EE'TTL (SEZYEY  $ %OVST-  viESel  $ %)) 008'192  $ 1%G- 855'e2z  $ os8vee  $ Jequagag
%zL'9e- | vve'ase %9.'8 - G08'68Y $ %) 65e'0sy  $ i%6- 199y $ 60c'68y  $ JaquisroN
%E9 |- | L58'8vS %00'1Z 116'265 $ %) ISEI9Y  $ %0L ovLisy $ vozLy 190000
%€ LT En [42] %OE'EL 298'L28 $ %l 1 198'809  $ %G 006'286  $ 218'lee 8 Jaquaideg
%2102 oavize ¢ o sENS Sy e0M'9ES  $%b L6Y'¥8s  $ 8.8'665 _§ snbny
%z [zsdiey % wvvel- 969y & %02 SELVPS  $ %8 09962y $ 6vE9QY ¢ Anr
SsOT/uteD %; S10Z-v10 ssojuled % ¥102-€102 $SOT/UIeD %! €10T-2I0T : SSOYUIeD %  Z10Z-1L0Z | SSOTUIED %  110Z-0102
Awpuop Lﬂw> _mOm_u_ ‘ >_5:°§ Jea )\ _mn,vm n_ >»_ :OE WMW»>€-WUM:.M >—£:OE Jeaj _ﬂun_xum,. T Lﬂ!ﬂ#»_‘m.om_m pUOW
o CyTm e xe] Butbpoy %y

S107 OURT BUIBUT J¥6) [e081d

ucdey Xe1 BUGRo

eI BUES IO A

11



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

5( A /‘Zzlfc_
Working Draft
2/23/15

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
BILL NO. 2015-___

INTRODUCED BY:

Councilor Joseph Maestas

AN ORDINANCE
AMENDING SECTION 2-22 SFCC 1987 TO RENAME THE “INTERNAL AUDIT
DEPARTMENT” THE “ACCOUNTABILITY AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT”; ESTABLISH A POSITION OF A FRAUD AUDITOR TO INVESTIGATE
FRAUD, WASTE AND ABUSE ALLEGATIONS AND INCREASE EFFICIENCY
THROUGHOUT CITY OPERATIONS BY IDENTIFYING OPPORTUNITIES FOR
RECOVERY OF REVENUE OR OTHER ASSETS; AND MAKING SUCH OTHER
CHANGES AS ARE NECESSARY TO CLARIFY CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF SANTA FE:
Section 1. Section 2-22 SFCC 1987 (being Ord. #2012-32) is amended to read:

2-22 [INTERNAL-AUDIT] ACCOUNTABILITY AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

DEPARTMENT.
Section 2. Subsection 2-22.1 SFCC 1987 (being Ord. #2012-32, §2) is amended to

read:
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2-22.1 Short Title.

Section 2-22 SFCC 1987 shall be cited as the "[Internal-Audit] Accountability and

Performance Management Department Ordinance."

Section 3. Subsection 2-22.2 SFCC 1987 (being Ord. #2012-32 §3, as amended) is
amended to read:

2-22.2 Findings; Purpose; Goals.

A. The governing body finds that good governance, transparency and accountability are
critical in the public sector for the effective and credible functioning of a healthy democracy, and in
fulfilling the government's responsibility to citizens and taxpayers.

B. Transparent and reliable reporting and effective auditing in government serve to
promote accountability, enhance the effectivengss of government services to its citizens, and increase
the public's confidence in their government.

C. The members of the governing body share a duty to [insure] ensure that the actions of
public officials, employees and contractors of the city are carried out in the most responsible manner
possible and that city policies, budgets, goals an(i objectives are fully implemented.

D. To accomplish this, tfle city requires the services of an independent office to provide
independent, objective assurance and review services designed to promote transparency,
accountability, efficiency and éffectiveness of city government.

E. In 2013, the governing body enacted Section 19-2 SFCC 1987, the Fraud, Waste and

Abuse Hotline Ordinance, which was created for the purpose of establishing a mechanism for city

employees to report alleged fraud, waste or abuse by city employees or city public officers.

F. The intent of the governing body in enacting the Fraud, Waste and Abuse Hotline

Ordinance was to protect public employees by keeping confidential the name of the public employee

who lodges a good faith complaint through the fraud, waste and abuse hotline from retaliation.

G. There is a need to establish a position of forensic auditor to facilitate the purpose and
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intent within the accountability and performance management department to be responsible for

investigating fraud, waste and abuse, whether reported or identified through independent

investigation.

H. A forensic auditor will assist the governing body in evaluating and determining

whether there is a future need for an office of inspector general.

[E]l. The governing body does hereby establish the [internal-audit] accountability and

performance management department, an independent city department of city government reporting

to the city manager, which shall oversee the [internal] city auditor and the functions hereby
established. To ensure independence and compliance with generally accepted governmental auditing
standards, the [internal] city auditor:
@) Shall report results to [the—eity—manager;] the audit committee, the city
manager, [the-finance-committee] and the governing body, through the finance committee;

2) Is a city department located organizationally outside of other city

departments;

3) Has access to the governing body in accordance with the Open Meeting Act;
and

C)) Is sufficiently removed from political pressures to conduct audits and report

findings, opinions and conclusions objectively without fear of political reprisal.

[E]J. The governing body also directs the [internal-audit] accountability and performance

management department, in cooperation with the audit committee, to establish job descriptions and
department policies and procedures based on generally accepted governmental auditing standards;
and to adopt the Code of Ethics as defined by the Institute of Internal Auditors.

Section 4. Subsection 2-22.3 SFCC 1987 (being Ord. #2012-32 §4, as amended) is
amended to read:

2-22.3 Definitions.
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For the purpose of this section, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly
indicates or requires a different meaning.

Auditees mean the city related departments, programs, activities, agencies, vendors,
contractors, employees, public officials or other city related entities affected by an audit or
investigation.

City auditor means the internal auditor who is the head of the accountability and performance

management department.

Committee means the City of Santa Fe audit committee.
Contractors mean all city contractors.

Forensic_auditor means the internal auditor whose primary focus is the identification and

investigation of fraud, waste and abuse.

Internal auditor means [the-internal-auditor-whe-is-the-head] an auditor employed [ef] in the

[internal-audit] accountability and performance management department.
Employee means a city employee.
Official means the mayor or a city councilor.
Report means an audit, a special audit, an investigation and/or an examination, or a summary

of work performed.

Special investigation or special audit means additional procedures or audits undertaken
because the need was not previously foreseen.

Section 5. Subsection 2-22.4 SFCC 1987 (being Ord. #2012-32 §5, as amended) is
amended to read:

2-22.4 Creation of the [Internal-Audit] Accountability and Performance

Management Department; Resources; Staff.

A. The [internal—audit] accountability and performance management department is

created as an independent office of city government. The [internal] city auditor is the head of the
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[internal-audit] accountability and performance management department and shall report to the city

ménager.

B. The audit committee shall review applications for and make a recommendation to the
city manager for hiring of the [internal] city auditor, a city employee.

C. The [internal] city auditbr shall review applications and make recommendations to

the city manager for hiring other [internal—audit] accountability and performance management

department employees; or independent contractors to be procured for assistance to the [internal-audit]

accountability and performance management department.

D. Pursuant to Section 19-2 SFCC 1987. the Fraud, Waste and Abuse Hotline

Ordinance, a forensic auditor, an internal auditor within the accountability and performance

management department shall:

(H) Investigate fraud, waste and abuse, whether reported or identified through

independent investigation:

(2) Increase efficiency throughout the city by finding opportunities for recovery

of revenue or other assets; and

(3) Exercise zero tolerance for fraud, waste and abuse.

[BJE. In accordance with law and in consultation with the city attorney's office, the city
manager shall report proposed personnel actions, such as hiring, discipline or termination, relating to
the [internal] city auditor to the audit committee in executive session, in accordance with the New
Mexico Open Meetings Act. Nothing in this paragraph shall prohibit the city manager from
immediately placing the [internal] city auditor on administrative leave due to a proposed personnel
action; however, the city manager shall report the proposed personnel action to the audit committée,
within seven (7) business days from the date the[internal] city auditor is placed on administrative

leave.
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[}JF. The [auditer’s] accountability and performance management department’s budget

shall be reflected in the city manager's proposed budget as a separate department. The budget shall be
sufficient to allow the organization to carry out its responsibilities including sufficient funding for

annual continuing professional education requirements and professional certification as required by

the generally accepted governmental auditing standards. The [auditer's] accountability and

performance management department’s proposed budget shall be prepared by the city auditor and

presented to the finance director and the city manager.

Section 4. Section 2-22.5 SFCC 1987 (being Ord. #2012-32 §6, as amended) is
amended to read:

2-22.5 [Iaternal] City Auditor's Duties; Responsibilities; Authority; Administrative
Subpoena Power.

A. If [the] an internal auditor detects instances of possible fraud, waste, or abuse or
potential violations of law by an auditee, [he-shall-report] the irregularities shall be reported to the

city manager and the audit committee, or the chairperson of the finance committee if the city manager

is involved.

N In accordance with Section 12-6-6 NMSA 1978 and state auditor's Rule
2.2.2.10K(3), a notification letter regarding the possible fraud, waste or abuse shall also be
sent to the state auditor’s office whether or not an investigation by [the] an internal auditor is
conducted.

2) If the irregularity is criminal in nature, the internal auditor shall immediately

refer the irregularity to the appropriate prosecuting authority and apprise, concurrently, the

city attorney of such action.

3) If the irregularity warrants a special investigation, audit, and/or special audit,
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then the [internal] forensic auditor shall conduct a special investigation, audit and/or special

audit. The report shall be submitted to the audit committee, the city manager or the
chairperson of the finance committee if the city manager is involved, [the-audit-committee;]
the auditee[;] and the governing body through the finance committee.

“) The [internal] city auditor shall not accept complaints related to

discrimination or labor law matters. [In-some-cases;-it-may-be-appropriate-for-internal-audit-te

The city auditor shall defer investigating complaints which are otherwise subject to

investigation pursuant to human resources department policies or the police department

internal affairs directives. In some cases, it may be appropriate for the city auditor to work

with investigators or legal authorities, or withdraw from or defer audit work on the audit or

portion of the audit to avoid interfering with an ongoing investigation or legal proceeding.

B. The [intemnal] city auditor shall adhere to generally accepted governmental auditing
standards in conducting its work and will be considered independent as defined by those standards.

C. The [internal—audit] accountability and performance management department is

subject to a peer review by an appropriate professional non-partisan objective group every three (3) to
five (5) years. A copy of the written report shall be furnished to the city manager, audit committee,
and governing body, via the finance committee.

D. The accountability and performance management department is authorized to

conduct the following audits as defined in generally accepted governmental auditing standards:

(1 Performance/Management Audits. Performance audits are defined as

engagements that provide assurance or conclusions based on an evaluation of sufficient and

appropriate_evidence against stated criteria, such as specific requirements, measures, or

defined business practices.
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{(2) Financial Audits.

3) Attestation Engagements. Attestation engagements result in an examination,

a review, or agreed upon procedures about a subject matter that is the responsibility of

another party. This includes special audits.

(4) Advisory (Non-Audit) Services. This_includes special investigations. The

issued report shall not include an opinion statement or a statement indicating the investigation

was done in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards. These

services are subiject to applicable professional standards.

E. The city auditor shall have the authority to conduct performance and financial audits,

attestation engagements or to provide advisory (non-audit) services to independently and objectively

determine whether:

(1 City. state or federal law authorizes the implemented activities and programs

that are the subject of the audit;

(2) The obiectives intended by city, state or federal law are efficiently and

effectively accomplished in the implementation of activities and programs;

3) The expenditure of funds was or is in compliance with applicable laws:
(4) The revenues were or are properly collected, deposited and accounted for:
(5) The entity, programs, activities, functions, or policies are effective, including

the identification of any causes of inefficiencies or uneconomical practices;

(6) The desired result or benefits are being achieved;
(N Resources, including funds, property and personnel, were or are adequately

safepuarded, controlled and used in a faithful, effective and efficient manner;

(8) Financial and other reports fairly and fully disclosed all information as

required by law necessary to evaluate and ascertain the nature and scope of programs and

activities;
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(9) Management established operating and _administrative procedures and

practices, accounting internal control systems and internal management controls were and are

adequate and functioning as intended;

(10)  City policies, budgets, goals and objectives were and are fully implemented;

and

(11)  Reports or other indications of fraud, waste, abuse or illegal acts are valid

and need further investigation.

E. The [internal] city auditor shall have the power to subpoena witnesses, administer
oaths and require the production of records subject to the New Mexico Rules of Civil Procedure. In
the case of a refusal to obey a subpoena issued to any person, the [internal] city auditor may make
application to any district court in the state that shall have the jurisdiction to order the witness to
appear before the [internal] city auditor and to produce evidence if so ordered, or to give testimony
touching on the matter in question.

G. The city auditor may implement administrative procedures to effectuate the

Accountability and Performance Management Department Ordinance.

Section 5. Section 2-22.6 SFCC 1987 (being Ord. #2012-32 §7, as amended) is

amended to read:

2-22.6 [Secope-of] Audit Plan.

10
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investigation.]

Audits, except for unforeseen special audits or special investigations/examinations, will be conducted

based on an_annual audit plan developed in_accordance with applicable professional auditing

standards. This plan and any modifications thereof, are to be reviewed by the audit committee and

12
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recommended for approval.

A. Within sixty (60) days before the beginning of each fiscal year, the city auditor shall

submit a one-to-five-year audit plan to the audit committee, the city manager and the governing body

for review and comments, but the city auditor shall have final authority to select the audits planned.

The proposed plan shall include the rationale for the selections, for auditing departments, offices,

boards, activities, subcontractors and agencies for the period. This plan may be amended after review:

B. The final plan and any amendments will be presented to the audit committee, the city
manager, and the governing body through the finance committee;

C. In the selection of audit areas and audit objectives, the determination of audit scope

and the timing of audit work, the [internall city auditor shall consult with federal, state and other

external auditors so that the desirable audit coverage is provided and audit effort is properly

coordinated.

D. The final plan shall set aside time for unforeseen investigations and audits.

Section 6. Section 2-22.7 SFCC 1987 (being Ord. #2012-32 §8, as amended) is
amended to read:

2-22.7 Reports.

A. The [internal] city auditor shall report results of all types of audits, investigations

and/or engagements in their final report form to the auditees, the audit committee, the city manager,

[the-auditees;] and the governing body via the finance committee, except if the city manager is the

subject of the audit, then the report shall be delivered to the chairperson of the finance committee.

B. All types of audit reports, investigations and/or engagements, in their final report
form, are public records, available for public inspection.

C. The [internal] city auditor's reports, including attestation engagements, shall follow
the guidelines as specified in generally accepted governmental auditing standards, or in the case of a

non-audit service applicable professional auditing standards.

13



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Working Draft

2/23/15
D. At a minimum audit and attestation engagement reports should include:
n Statements describing the objectives, scope and methodology of the audit;
) A statement that the audit was performed in accordance with generally

accepted government auditing standards;

3) Background information, audit results, and findings as appropriate;

“) A conclusion based on the audit objectives and the audit findings.

) The findings in the audit report should present sufficient, appropriate
evidence to support the conclusion in relation to the audit objectives.

E. Responses submitted by the [eity-manager] auditee relevant to the audit findings must

include a remediation plan specifying dates and corrective action to be taken to resolve the issue.
M A response is required within fourteen (14) days of receipt of a final report;

2 If no response is received, the [internal] city auditor will note that fact in the

transmittal letter and will release the report without a remediation plan.

management:|
Section 7. Section 2-22.8 SFCC 1987 (being Ord. #2012-32 §9) is amended to read:

2-22.8 Reporting.

more-frequently-whenrequested:|

The city auditor shall submit an annual report to the audit committee, city manager. and

14
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governing body via the finance committee within sixty (60) days after fiscal year end indicating all

audits, investigations and/or engagements completed, major findings, performance improvements and

cost savings, corrective actions taken by administrative managers, and significant issues which have

not been fully addressed by management.

Section 8. Section 2-22.9 SFCC 1987 (being Ord. #2012-32 §10, as amended) is
amended to read:

2-22.9 Contract Auditors, Consultants, And Experts.

Within budgetary constraints, the [internel] city auditor may obtain the services of certified
public accountants, qualified management consultants, certified fraud examiners, forensic auditors or

other professional experts necessary to perform the functions of the [internal-audit] accountability and

performance management department. Contractors performing an audit shall not have any financial

interest in the affairs of the auditees, officials or employees. The [internal] city auditor shall
coordinate and monitor auditing performed by persons under contract to the [internal] city auditor.

Section 9. Section 2-22.10 SFCC 1987 (being Ord. #2012-32 §11, as amended) is
amended to read:

2-22.10 Penalty; Cooperation; Retaliation Prohibited.

A. All city officials, employees and contractors shall provide [the] internal [auditor]
auditors full and unrestricted access to all city offices, employees, records, information, data, reports,
plans, projections, matters, contracts, memoranda, correspondence, electronic data, property,
equipment and facilities and any other materials within their custody. At the [internal] city auditor's
request, an official, employee or contractor shall prepare reports and provide interviews. If an auditee,
official, employee, vendor or contractor fails to produce the requested information, the [internal] city
auditor shall notify the city manager requesting his assistance in causing a search to be made and
germane exhibits to be taken from any book, paper or record, written or electronic, excepting personal

property. The city manager shall require the officials, employees, vendors or contractors to produce

15
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the requested information. If the city manager is the auditee, then a city official shall be appointed by

the chairperson of the finance committee to be the point of contact for the city auditor. Further, all

contracts with outside contractors and subcontractors shall contain a "right-to-audit" clause providing
the [internal] city auditor access to the contractor's employees and to all financial and performance

related records, property, and equipment purchased in whole or in part with governmental funds.

NMSA-1978] An official or employee shall not be dismissed, threatened with dismissal, or otherwise

singled out for retaliation because the person has cooperated or assisted the city auditor in the

performance of an audit.

C. Any official or employee who violates this section may be subject to discipline as
may be specified in applicable city ordinances or any applicable collective bargaining agreement.

Section 10. Section 2-22.11 SFCC 1987 (being Ord. #2013-34 §9) is amended to read:

2-22.11 Audits and the Inspection of Public Records Act.

A. This subsection is adopted pursuant to the general welfare and police powers
conferred upon the City of Santa Fe by §3-17-1 et seq. and §3-18-1 et seq. NMSA 1978, pursuant to
the powers conferred upon the City of Santa Fe by the New Mexico Constitution, Article X §§6(D)
and 6(E) and the Municipal Charter Act §3-15-1 et seq. NMSA 1978, which have been exercised by
the city's adoption of the Santa Fe Municipal Charter. The purpose of this subsection is within both
the city's home rule powers and the delegated powers that all municipalities have to provide for the
general welfare of their residents by the general welfare clause in Section 3-17-1(B) NMSA 1978 and

police power to "protect generally the property of its municipality and its inhabitants" and to
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"preserve peace and order within the municipality” by Section 3-18-1(F) and (G) NMSA 1978.
B. At all times during the audit process and after the report becomes a public record;

[the] internal [auditer] auditors shall follow applicable standards and 2.2.2 NMAC regarding the

release of any information relating to the audit. Applicable standards include but are not limited to the
AICPA Code of Ethics Rule 301 and related interpretations and guidance, Institute for Internal
Auditors interpretations and guidance and GAGAS 4.30 to 4.32 and GAGAS 4.40 to 4.44.

Section 11. A new Subsection 2-22.12 SFCC 1987 is ordained to read:

2-22.12 Review; Reporting.

A. This Ordinance shall be reviewed by the governing body within one (1) year of a
forensic auditor being employed by the city.

B. The forensic auditor, in coordination with the city auditor, shall provide a report to
the governing body on all matters regarding investigations of, fraud, waste and abuse along with
resulting performance improvements and cost savings so that the governing body may determine

whether an inspector general office is required for the city of Santa Fe.

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

KELLEY A. BRENNAN, CITY ATTORNEY

M/Legislation/Bills 2015/Internal Audit Dept_Forensic Auditor
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ExHIBIT D

Audit h ‘ Qea‘r Open Findings Due Date of Audit Date Report Issued
City of Santa Fe
CAFR 12/01/2014 12/01/2014
"Fcfo’rens‘i’c Audit-?aéking_, g - ‘;.»0,4/2_0/20’13 04/20/2013
Lodger's Tax | Non specified 06/30/2014
Shelter Plus . N/A | 09/03/2013
'Santa Fe Buckman Diver « o ey
BDb - Operations @ 2011 1 | 09/30/2011 11/09/2012

dit

S,ummarv,for 'Status of Audit Report’
Grand Total 16?

Wednesday, February 25, 2015 Page 1of 1



Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority

2014 - Audit  Civic Housing Authority Comments

Type of Audit Financial 01/07/2015_No Information available. 02/04/2015_Report was submitted to the State Auditor's

. . Office on 12/19/2014, but is still in 'review’ so is not available for download. Copy of audit report
Auditor Robert Rivera, CPA given to audit committee on March 4, 2015.
Due Date of Audit 12/01/2014

Date Field Work Started Wzo" ><,mm._mu_m

Status of Audit Report

v

_Sant A : :
2014 Audit SWMA Comments
Type of Audit Financial

Entrance Conference held July 21, 2014. Work is progressing according to timeline. Copy of audit

) ) . report given to audit committee on March 4, 2015.
Auditor Accounting and Consulting Group

Due Date of Audit 12/01/2014

Date Field Work Started

Status of Audit Report

The Santa Fe Railyard Community Corporation and Subsidiary
2014 Audit Santa Fe Railyard Comments

Type of Audit Financial The SFRCC has a lease and management agreement with the City, they make lease payments to

Audi 8 loueh & Associates. P.C the City each May 1st and November 1st. Audit for 2014 completed 12/16/2014. Copy given to
uaitor arracioug ssociates, L. Audit Committee at 02/07/2015 audit committee meeting.

Due Date of Audit 12/31/2014
Date Field Work Started wzoﬁ Available
Status of Audit Report Emﬁwmnmzma

City of Santa Fe

Wednesday, February 25, 2015 Page 1 of 3



2014 Audit Lodger's Tax Comments

Type of Audit Contractor 01/28/2015 - (Per Barraclough) They have still not received a response from 4 of the entities
Auditor Barraclough & Associates, P.C selected for audit. Help is requested from the City. A request was sent to Finance and Legal to

s send letters to the auditees. 02/25/2015 - 11 audits have been completed, 3 are in process, and 6
Due Date of Audit Non specified are pending action by finance or legal. Emails have been sent to finance and legal as of

02/25/2015.

Date Field Work Started

9/15/2014

Status of Audit Report Not Issued
| Eo_d is scheduled to start on 02/ 22/2015. Audit report is
h31,2015. o |

Audit BDD - Operations [ Comments
Type of Audit Financial Entrance Conference is scheduled for February 25, 2015. On Fbruary 25, 2015 the entrance
Audi A i dc lting G conference was rescheduled to March 11, 2015. he delay is due to a GO Bond audit being
uditor ccounting and LONSUTtINg GIOUR .., 4,,cted through 03/15/2015.
Due Date of Audit 09/30/2014

Date Field Work Started 08/11/2014

Status of Audit Report Not tssued

Wednesday, February 25, 2015 Page 2 of 3



2013 Audi

_mm&mw ,ﬁow mwmamé Mmm._wowm. On Fbruary 25, 2015 the entrance

Type of Audit , _

S , 0 March 11, 2015. he delay is due to a GO Bond audit being
Auditor . e T T :

Due Date of Audit

Date Field Work Starte

&

BDD - Operations @ Comments

Type of Audit Financial Entrance Conference is scheduled for February 25, 2015. On Fbruary 25, 2015 the entrance
conference was rescheduled to March 11, 2015. The delay is due to a GO Bond audit being

Auditor Accounting and Consulting Group conducted through 03/15/2015.
Due Date of Audit 09/30/2012
Date Field Work Started m\pp\woz

Status of Audit Report ot _mmcmo_A ‘

Wednesday, February 25, 2015 Page 3 0of 3
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Robert J. Rivera, CPA, PC

Certified Public Accountants
6 Calle Medico, Suite 4
(505) 983-6002 Santa Fe, New Mexico 87505-4761 Fax (505) 983-6474

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors -

Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority
and

Mr. Hector H. Balderas

New Mexico State Auditor

Santa Fe, New Mexico

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, each major
fund, the aggregate remaining fund information of the Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority (the
Authority), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements
which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. We also have audited the budgetary comparisons for the major enterprise funds presented
as supplementary information, as defined by the Government Accounting Standards Board, in the
accompanying combining and individual fund financial statements as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2014, as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Statcs of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the andit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement.

-Vi-



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An auditalso
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions. ‘

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above, present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities, each major enterprise fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Authority, as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes
in financial position and where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary
comparisons for the each major enterprise fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The budgetary comparisons of the
Authority are presented in conformity with the budgetary basis approved by the US Department of
- Housing and Urban Development, and more fully described in Note 2, which is a basis of accounting
consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages ix through xiv be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the Authority’s financial statements,
the combining and individual fund financial statements, and the budgetary comparisons. The
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards as required by Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the other
schedules listed as “Supplementary Information” in the table of contents are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and other schedules listed as “Supplemental
Information” in the table of contents are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and other schedules are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December
15, 2014, on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

fotawdQ). fuen_, cp, be

Robert J. Rivera, CPA, PC
Santa Fe, New Mexico
December 15, 2014
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2014

This section of the Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority’s (Authority) annual financial report presents
management's discussion and analysis of the Authority's financial performance during the fiscal year that
ended on June 30, 2014, Please read it in conjunction with the Authority's financial statements, which

follow this section.

Operational Highlights

The 2014 fiscal year had several significant extraordinary changes as follows:

The Authority closed its CFRC grant received in 2009 resulting in two longterm cash flow notes
from its Villa Alegre Family and Villa Alegre Senior for a total of $3,974,724.

The Authority continued receiving Housing replacement factor funds in the amount of $124,000
resulting from the demolishment of 104 public housing units within its Santa Fe Public Housing
portfolio. It is anticipated that $1.2 million will eventually be allocated to SFCHA over the next
ten years.

The Authority continued the redevelopment program at the site of the demolished units and has
completed Phase III of 29 apartments through the 9% LITHC program. Phase IV will be
implemented in FYE 2014. The Authority was the developer and general partner in phases I-III
and will be the developer and owner in Phase IV.

The Town of Bernalillo (TOB) PHA program has been transferred and incorporated into the
SFCHA effective July 1, 2013.

Financial Highlights

Net position of the Authority increased $1,815,783 to $25,687,900 as of June 30, 2014. The
Authority had losses primarily related to depreciation expense. However, the Authority showed
positive cash flows of just over $225,000, primarily as it relates to operations.

The total operating revenues of the Authority's enterprise units decreased by approximately
$2,500,000. Further analysis will detect that HUD subsidies for both the Public Housing and the
Voucher programs continue to decrease. These decreases are a cause for concern because the
Authority is forced to utilize cash reserves built up within the programs. This caused the Vouchers
program to have negative cash flow from operations for the third year in a row. While our reserves
continue to be substantial this practice of utilizing reserves to balance our budgets could
undermine the stability of the Authority. As such the authority has entered into a class action suit
to recover public housing subsidy offsets of up to $800,000 during calendar year 2013, an outcome
has yet to be determined. On the positive side facilities rentals increased by approximately
$60,000 indicating our core business is prospering. Although significantly less than the prior year,
Cielo Azul was the beneficiary of approximately $380,000 in developer fees and sustainable tax
credits.

Two key indicators of financial health, current ratio and debt to equity, remain very strong. Most
consider a current ratio of over 2:1 to be very healthy. The Authority’s current ratio continues to
be near 9:1. In addition, the debt to equity ratio remains about .14 times, where many consider
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
- MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2014

anything less than .5 times to be very healthy. Another way to explain it, for every $1 of debt the
Authority has, it has approximately $8.50 of equity.

. The Authority’s net capital assets increased by approximately $1,400,000, which is related to the
acquisition/merger of the Bernalillo Housing Authority.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The financial statements consist of three parts - management's discussion and analysis (this section), the
basic financial statements, and supplemental information. The basic financial statements include two
kinds of statements that present different views of the Authority:

The first two statements are Government-wide financial statements that provide information about the
Authority's overall financial position and results. These statements, which are presented on an
accrual basis, consist of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.

» The remaining statements are fund financial statements of the Authority's six distinct programs
which all follow an accrual basis of accounting.

+ Thebasic financial statements also include a "Notes to Financial Statements” section that explains
some of the information in the Authority-wide and fund financial statements and provides more
detailed data.

The remainder of this overview section of management's discussion and analysis explains the structure and
contents of each of these statements. The prior year results referred to throughout this section for
comparison purposes are as previously reported.

The Authority-wide statements report information about the Authority as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private sector companies. The Statement of Net Position includes all of
the Authority's assets and liabilities. All of the current year revenues and expenses are accounted for in
the Statement of Activities regardless of when cash is received or paid. Most of the Authority's activities
are business-type and are reported in its proprietary funds.

Fund Finanpial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the Authority's most significant
funds and not the Authority as a whole. The Authority has one fund type:

Proprietary Fund - The Authority's activities are in its proprietary funds, which activities are accounted
for in a manner similar to businesses operating in the public sector. Funding has primarily arisen through
the issuances of bonds, both tax-exempt and taxable, the proceeds of which are primarily used to make
various types of loans to finance low and moderate-income housing. The net assets of these funds represent
accumulated earnings since their inception and are generally restricted for program purposes.



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2014

Financial Analysis of the Authority as a Whole

Net Position.  The combined net position of the Authority increased by $1,815,783 from the June 30,
2013, amount. The following table shows a summary of changes from prior year amounts.

Proprietary Increase
Proprietary Increase
(Decrease)
2014 2013 Amt %

Cash and investments 6,934,269 6,594,445 339,824 5%
Accounts receivable 2,751,663 2,538,841 212,822 8%
Federal grants receivable - 192,418 (192,418) (100)%
Other current assets 57335 54,344 2,991 5%
Total current assets 9,743,267 9,380,048 363,219 4%
Other Assets 4,430,284 4,501,777 (71,493) 2%
Fixed assets (net) 15.976.488 14.530.183 1.446.305 10 %
Total assets 30,150,039 28,412,008 1,738,031 6 %

Accounts payable 32,656 123,665 (91,009) (74)%
Accrued liabilities 142,107 - 142,107 100%
Compensated absences

payable 241,547 241,352 195 -%
Tenant security deposits 112,393 229,715 (117,322) 51)%
Notes payable 296,411 292,303 4,108 1%
Due to other governments - 40,278 (40,278) (100)%
Escrows and deposits 211,280 90,827 120,453 132%

Total current liabilities 1,036,394 1,018,140 18,254 2%
Notes payable 3,425,745 3,521,751 (96,006) (3)%
Total liabilities 4,462,139 4,539,891 (77,752) (D%

Net position 25,687,900 23,872,117 1,815,783 8%
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2014

Cash and investments increased $339,824 primarily due to cash collections on development income
and the earnings from utilizing those funds. The increase in fixed assets of $1,446,305 is related to
the acquisition or merger of the Bernalillo Housing Authority, in which approximately $2.6 million
of assets were acquired and the Authority had approximately $1.3 million of depreciation expense for
the year. Total liabilities decreased by $77,752, which was about 2% of total liabilities, which is not
significant. ‘

Statement of Activities. This Statement shows the sources of the Authority’s changes in net position
as they arise from the seven programs and functions. The increase in net position occurred primarily
from the items in the operation section above. All programs demonstrated positive cash flow activities
prior to depreciation.

A condensed Statement of Activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 is shown in the
table below.
Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority’s

Statement of Activities
Increase
(Decrease)
2014 2013 Amount %
Facility rentals $2,456,044 2,394,198 61,846 3%
HUD grant and subsidy 8,873,840 10,524,881 (1,651 ,041) (16)%
Other revenue 705,956 1,610,787 (904,831) (56) %

Total operating revenue 12,035,840 14,529,866  (2,494,026) 17 %

Operating expenses 12,847,143 14,748,621  (1,901.478) 13%
Operating income (811,303)  (218,755) (592,548) (@271)%

Total non-operating

revenues (expenses) - - - -%
Change in net position (811,303)  (218,755) (592,548) (271)%
Equity transfers and
contributions 2,691,727 108,399 2,583,328  2.383%

Total change in net
position 1,880,424  (110,356) 1,990,780  1,804%
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30,2014

HUD grants and subsidies showed the biggest dollar decrease, approximately $1.6 million. This is
related to the decrease in capital grants, in which there were none in the current year. In addition, other
operating revenues, most notably development income due to 2013 being higher than average,
decreased by approximately $900k. We anticipate revenues to flat-line or decrease in foreseeable
future, unless tax credit projects, similar to 2013, were to materialize.

Operating expenses decreased approximately $1.9 million, or about 13%. This is primarily related to
capital grants/projects incurring costs that did not meet capitalization requirements and about $1.3
million was expensed in 2013. Further, the Section 8 program had a reduction of expenditures of
about $400k. The other expense categories were similar to prior year balances.

Budgetary Highlights

The Authority did not have any significant budgetary adjustments from the original budgets that were
approved by the Board of Directors and HUD. All the funds actual expenditures were under budgeted
amounts except for the HCV program fund and the Espanola Housing Fund. The primary reason why
the HCV program was over budget is due to adjustments not being made is it relates to port-in
expenditures. Further, the Espanola Housing fund was over-budget due to an error on how
depreciation expense was included, in which the budget amount was $85k and the actual was greater
than $400k.

Fund Balance Analysis
Program Increase

(Decrease)

Housing Authority $ 2,154,021

Vouchers (720,731)

Housing Development Corp. 158,100

Cielo Azul 326,947

La Cieneguita _ (37.913)

Total operational increase $ 1,880,424

Again the acquisition/merger of the Bernalillo Housing Authority noted above and with capital assets
is the primary factor in net increase. The increase in Cielo Azul was the result of continued
development activities.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2014

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

. Capital assets increased by approximately $1,400,000 primarily from the Acquisition/merger
of the Bemalillo Housing Authority. The Housing Authority completed significant
procedures in valuing these assets since the Bernalillo Housing Authority received a
disclaimer of opinion in 2013. The Housing Authority considered the assets, more
specifically the buildings, to be impaired, and a lower of cost or market analysis was
completed. Since there were no reliable historical costs, the Authority utilized a market
analysis to value the buildings. As part of this, it is important to understand that since the
Authority disposed/sold the buildings in July 2014, that sales price, not the appraisal, was
utilized as the market value. Other than the activity as it relates to Bernalillo, there was no
significant capital asset activity during 2014.

. The Authority did not acquire any additional debt during FY13. In addition, the Authority
only made scheduled payments on all notes, decreasing total notes payable by approximately
$92,000.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets

Funding is determined at the federal level and 2015 budgets have not been appropriated by HUD at

. this time. However, we are anticipating level to lower funding from HUD. This has minimal to no
impact on current operations since all of the funds of the Housing Authority have a strong Net Asset
position.

On July 17, 2014 the Bernalillo Public Housing Site was disposed of through the RAD program into
Village in the Bosque LLC a Low Income Housing Tax Credit project.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances for all those
with an interest in the Authority’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in
this report or requests for additional financial information would be addressed to the Executive
Director, 664 Alta Vista, Santa Fe, NM 87502.

-Xiv-



Exhibit A
STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2014
Business-Type
ASSETS Activities
Current Assets
Cash, investments and equivalents $ 6,610,221
Tenant receivable, net 132,551
Other receivables - related parties 2,613,065
Other receivables 6,047
Federal grants receivable -
Prepaid expenses 57,335
Inventory -
Cash, investments and equivalents - restricted 324,048
Total current assets 9,743,267
Capital Assets
Land 1,174,589
Construction in progress 216,875
Buildings and improvements 39,060,338
Furniture and fixtures 882,914
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 236,964
Vehicles 438,601
Accumulated depreciation (26,033,793)
Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 15,976,488
Other Assets _
Notes receivable 4,430,284
Total assets $ 30,150,039
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities )
Accounts payable $ 32,656
Tenant security deposits 112,393
Compensated absences payable 241,547
Accrued liabilities 142,107
Due to other governments -
Notes payable 296,411
Escrows and deposits 211,280
Total current liabilities 1,036,394
Noncurrent Liabilities
Notes payable, less current portion 3,425,745
Total liabilities $ 4,462,139
NET POSITION
Net invested in capital assets $ 11,118,178
Unrestricted 14,569,722
Total net position 3 25,687,900

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Program expenses
Housing

Program revenues
Charges for services
Capital grants and contributions
Operating grants and contributions

Total program revenues

Net revenues
General revenues
Development fees

Interest income
Other revenues

Total general revenues
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers
Equity transfers and contributions
Change in net position
Net position, beginning (as reported)

Restatement:
Change in reporting for deferred charges for loan issuance costs

Net position, beginning, as restated

Net position, ending

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

-

Exhibit B

Business-Type
Activities

$ 12,847,143

2,456,044

8,873,840
11,329,884
(1,517,259)

380,833
35,569
289,554

705,956

(811,303)

2,691,727

1,880,424

23,872,117

(64,641)

23,807,476

$ 25,687,900




STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended June 30, 2014

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash received from customers and grantors
-Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Insurance reimbursements
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Residual equity transaction
Principal paid on debt maturities
Interest paid on debt

Net cash used by noncapital financing activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Loans made to other entities
Interest and dividends on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash investments and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash investments and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Construction in progress not capitalized
Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Due from other funds
Other current assets
Accounts payable
Compensated absences payable
Deposits
Due to other funds
Due to HUD
Unearned revenues

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit C

Business-Type
Activities

$ 12,694,027
(9,380,538)
(1,897,494)

1,415,995

(288,658)
(288,658)

96,270
(91,898)
(159,618)

(155,246)

(781,408)
35,569

(745,839)
226,252
6,708,017
S 6954260

$ (687,254)

1,342,353
13,456

783,236
(8,159)
(316,027)
101,813
20,981
(16,608)
(3,794)
218,164
(40,278)
8,112

2,103,249
$ 1,415,995



ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash, investments and equivalents
Tenant receivable
Federal grants receivable
Other receivables - related parties
Other receivables
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses
Inventory

Cash, investments and equivalents-

restricted

Total current asseis

Capital Assets

Land
Construction in progress
Buildings and improvements
Fumniture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets

(net of depreciation)

Other Assets
Notes receivable
Due from other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Tenant security deposits
Compensated absences payable
Accrued Labilities
Due to other governments
Notes payable
Escrows and deposits
Due to other funds

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Notes payable
Due to other funds

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities
NET POSITION
Net invested in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total net position

$

$

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Exhibit D

ENTERFPRISE FUNDS
June 30, 2014
SF Housing
Housing Section 8 Development Cielo La
Authority Youcher Corporation Azul Cieneguita Total
1,867,194 § 1,682,943 § 2,246250 $ 623,887 § 189,947 6,610,221
129,643 - 2,065 842 1 132,551
468,715 - 363,820 1,780,530 - 2,613,065
; . } 6,047 - 6,047
642,971 - - - - 642,971
36,693 - 9,588 5,755 3,299 57,335
193,363 97,234 19,161 7,950 6,340 324,048
3,338,579 1,780,177 2,640,884 2,425,011 201,587 10,386,238
331,637 - 268,652 330,000 244,300 1,174,589
36,152 - - 180,723 - 216,875
32,428,558 - 3,708,510 1,449,513 1,473,757 39,060,338
682,336 - 200,578 - - 882,914
229,642 - 2,907 - 4,415 236,964
438,601 - - - - 438,601
(21,415,409) - (3,557,352) (474,714 (586,318) (26,033,793)
12,731,517 - 623,295 1,485,522 1,136,154 15,976,488
3,974,724 - - 455,560 - 4,430,284
- - 500,000 - - 500,000
20,044820 § 1,780,177 $ 3,764,179 $ 4,366,093 $§ 1337,741 31,293,010
- $ 32,656 $ - 3 - § - 32,656
79,317 - 19,161 7,950 5,965 112,393
241,547 - - - - 241,547
142,107 - - - - 142,107
- - 73,855 222,556 - 296,411
114,046 97,234 - - - 211,280
- 94,991 97,744 350,903 99,333 642,971
577,017 224,881 190,760 581,409 105,298 1,679,365
- - 2,779,715 646,030 - 3,425,745
- - - 500,000 - 500,000
- - 2,779,715 1,146,030 - 3,925,745
5771017 §$ 224,881 $ 2,970,475 8§ 1,727,439 $ 105,298 5,605,110
12,731,517 $ - 8 (2,230,275) $ 616,936 § - 11,118,178
6,736,286 1,555,296 3,023,979 2,021,718 1,232,443 14,569,722
19,467,803 § 1,555296 $ 793,704 § 2,638,654 $ 1,232,443 25,687,900

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

-



Operating Revenues
Facilities rentals
HUD grant and subsidy
Development fees
Other revenue

Total operating revenues
Operating Expenses

Salaries, wages and benefits
Community welfare

$

Contractusl services and utilities

Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation expense
Insurance

Other

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest on investments
Interest expense
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total nonoperating
revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions

and transfers

Equity transfers and contributions

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year (as reported)

Restatement:

Change in reporting of deferred charges for

loan issuance costs

Net position, beginning of year,
(as restated)

Net position, end of year

STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2014

Exhibit E

SF Housing
Housing Section 8 Development Cielo La
Authority Voucher Corporation Azul Cieneguita Total
1,343,532 § -8 760,138 $ 160,884 $ 191,490 § 2,456,044
1,674,551 7,199,289 - - - 8,873,840
- - - 380,833 - 380,833
73,526 95 100 215,773 60 289,554
3,091,609 7,199,384 760,238 757,490 191,550 12,000,271
929,244 628,651 207,579 305,904 102,345 2,173,123
150,387 7,229,595 - - - 7,379,982
649,098 13,006 85,170 11,559 25,790 784,623
607,687 13,287 73,576 45,307 30,137 769,994
1,131,518 - 98,442 48,317 64,076 1,342,353
144,307 2,604 18,899 6,483 6,716 179,009
17,470 32,985 338 6,548 500 57,841
3,629,711 7,920,128 484,004 424,118 229,564 12,687,525
(538,102) (720,744) 276,234 333,372 (38,014) (687,254)
396 13 803 34,256 101 35,569
- - (118,937) (40,681) - (159,618)
396 13 (118,134) (6,425) 101 (124,049)
(537,706) (720,731) 158,100 326,947 37,913) (811,303)
2,691,727 - - - - 2,691,727
2,154,021 (720,731) 158,100 326,947 (37,913) 1,880,424
17,313,782 2,276,027 700,245 2,311,707 1,270,356 23,872,117
- - (64,641) - - (64,641)
17,313,782 2,276,027 635,604 2,311,707 1,270,356 23,807,476
19,467,803 $ 1,555,296 § 793,704 $ 2,638,654 $ 1,232,443 § 25,687,900

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers and grantors

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

Cash payments to employees for services
Net cash provided by operating
activities

Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Net cash used by capital
financing activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activitics
Residual equity transfer
Capital cash contributions
Principal paid on debt maturities
Interest paid on debt
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Loans made to other entities
Interest and dividends on investments
Net cash provided (used) by investing
activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash investments and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Cash investments and cash equivalents
at end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities
Operating (loss) income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation

Construction in progress not capitalized

Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Due from other funds
Other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Escrow and deposits
Compensated absences payable
Deposits
Due to other funds
Due to HUD
Unearned revenues

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Exhibit F

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2014
SF Housing
Housing Section 8 Development Cielo La
Authority Youcher Corporation Azul Cieneguita Total
5 3755211 § 7,238,447 § 743,660 $ 765,057 $ 191,652 $ 12,694,027
(1,637,452) (7,353,371) (183,841) (70,017) (135857)  (9,380,538)
(933,918) (628,651) (207,579) (25,001) (102,345)  (1,897,494)
1,183,841 (743,575) 352,240 670,039 (46,550) 1,415,995
(107,935) - - __(180,723) - {288,658)
(107,935) - - (180,723) - (288,658)
96,270 - - - - 96,270
- - (71,130) (20,768) - (91,898)
- - (118,937) (40,681) - (159,618)
96,270 - (190,067) (61,449) - (155,246)
. - - (781,408) - (781,408)
396 13 803 34,256 101 35,569
396 13 803 (747,152) 101 (745,839)
1,172,572 (743,562) 162,976 (319,285) (46,449) 226,252
887,985 2,523,739 2,102,435 951,122 242,736 6,708,017
3 2,060,557 $ 1,780,177 $ 2265411 $ 631,837 $ 196,287 §_ 6,934,269
(538,102) §  (720,744) $ 276,234 3 333,372 (38,014) $§  (687,254)
1,131,518 - 98,442 48,317 64,076 1,342,353
13,456 - - - - 13,456
770,757 - 6,293 5,967 219 783,236
(7,531) - (449) (120) (59) (8,159)
(291,598) - (24,429) - - (316,027)
101,813 - - - - 101,813
(6,266) 32,656 (5,409) - - 20,981
(16,608) - - - - (16,608)
(13,242) 6,407 1,558 1,600 am (3,794)
31,532 (21,616) - 280,903 (72,655) 218,164
- (40,278) - - - (40,278)
8,112 - - - - 8,112
1,721,943 (22,831) 76,006 336,667 (8,536) 2,103,249
3 1,183,841 $  (743,575) § 352,240 % 670,039 § (46,550) $ 1,415,995

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity. The Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority (Authority) serves all the citizens of the City
of Santa Fe (City) by providing safe and affordable housing. Based on GASB 14 and GASB 61 it was
determined that the Authority is no longer a component unit of the City of Santa Fe. The City of Santa
Feis no longer responsible for the Authority’s debt as aresult of a HUD release. It was also determined
that even though the mayor of the City of Santa Fe appoints the Authority’s Board of Directors, the City
of Santa Fe cannot impose its will on the Authority. The Housing Authority had no blended or discrete
component units during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements (i.e.,
the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary
activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund
activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The Housing Authority
had no governmental-type activities.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with
a specific function or segment and include depreciation expense. Program revenues include 1) charges
to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and fiduciary funds even though the
latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. The Housing Authority had
no fiduciary funds.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation. The government-wide financial
statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Gains,
losses, assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources resulting
from exchange transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Grants and similar items
arerecognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2014

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in the government-wide statements to the extent that those standards do not
conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments
also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their entity-wide statements,
subject to this same limitation. The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector
guidance.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues.

Enterprise funds distinguish operatiﬁg revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goodsin
connection with propriety fund’s principal ongoing operations.

. The Authority reports the following major governmental funds:

The Housing Authority Fund is comprised of the Authority’s primary operating fund. It
accounts for all the financial resources of the entity, except those required to be accounted for
separately. The activity from Santa Fe, Bernalillo, and Espanola has been combined to create
one major fund.

The Section 8 Voucher Fund is used to account for the resources and expenditures that are
directly related to the US Housing and Urban Development’s Section & program. The activity
from Santa Fe, Bernalillo and Espanola has been combined to create one major fund.

The SF Housing Development Corporation Fund is used to account for the Section 8 property
on Camino Consuelo Street. '

The Cielo Azul Fund is used to account for the activity of an affordable housing project
purchased in October 2005. The primary function is to house residents whose income is less
than or equal to 80% of the area’s median income.

The La Cieneguita Fund is used to account for the Section 202 project opened in November
2001.



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Estimates. The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position

 Cash, Investments and Equivalents. For financial statement presentation, all demand deposits, money
market accounts, petty cash funds, and short-term financial instruments with original maturities of
three months or less are considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

Cash, Investments and Equivalents - Restricted. Considered restricted as to use since the cash deposits
are related to escrow and security deposits. There are no outside restrictions on these deposits. These
amounts are included in total cash, investments and equivalents for cash flow purposes.

Interfund Receivables and Payables. Short-term amounts owed between funds are classified as “due
to/from other funds”. Interfund loans are classified as “advances to/from other funds” and are offset
by a fund balance reserve account. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.

Accounts Receivable. Alltenant receivables are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. The
allowance is comprised of all accounts receivable which management estimates to be uncollectible.
Grant receivables are considered to be 100% collectible and an allowance was not created.

Inventories. The inventories held consist of expendable supplies held for consumption and recorded
at cost. The cost is recorded as expenditure at the time of consumption. Inventories for the Authority
are valued at cost. Inventories are included as part of current assets.

Prepaid Items. Prepaid balances are for payments made by the Authority in the current year to provide
services that are applicable to future accounting periods.

Capital Assets. Property, plant and equipment owned by the Authority are recorded at cost or, if
contributed property, at their fair market value at contribution. Repairs and maintenance are recorded
as expenses; renewals and betterments are capitalized. Assets capitalized have an original cost of
$5,000 or more. Depreciation has been calculated on each class of depreciable property using the
straight-line method and included as a direct expense in the government-wide statements. Estimated
useful lives are as follows:



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE1l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Years
Structures and improvements 5-50
Furniture, fixtures, machinery and equipment 5-7
Vehicles 5-8

Compensated Absences. The Authority’s policy allows employees to accumulate limited amounts of
vacation and sick pay, which are payable to the employee upon termination or retirement.

Loan Issuance Costs and Restatement. Loan issuance costs are expensed in the year they are incurred
in accordance with GASBS 65. The Authority had no loan issuance costs during the year ended June
30,2014. AsofJune 30,2013, the Authority had $64,641 of net loan issuance costs that was included
as part of “other assets.” This balance was required to be eliminated and beginning equity restated as
part of implementing GASBS 65.

Net Position. Net position represents the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources
and liabilities less deferred inflows of resources. The Housing Authority classifies net position in the
following three components:

*  Net investment in capital assets - This account represents the total of capital assets, including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances
of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets.

*  Restricted net position - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by (1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulation of other
governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The Housing
Authority had no restricted net positions at June 30, 2014.

*  Unrestricted net position - Consists of all other net assets that do not meet the definition of
"restricted" or "net investment in capital assets.”

When resources are available from both restricted and unrestricted sources, the Housing Authority
spends restricted resources first.

NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Information. Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles
approved by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). This basis is consistent
with principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Annual appropriated budgets are
adopted for all of the Authority’s funds.

Prior to June 1, the Authority’s Director submits to the Board of Directors and HUD a proposed
operating budget for the subsequent fiscal year. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures
and the budgeted revenues.

-10-



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

The Authority’s Director is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any
fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the
Authority’s Board of Directors.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for all
funds. The Authority at the functional level performs this budgetary control. The legal level of
budgetary control is at the fund level.

NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments held by the Authority consist of cash on deposit with financial institutions and
certificates of deposit. Deposits are secured by both federal depository insurance and collateral
pledged in the Authority’s name. Under New Mexico law, all deposits with financial institutions must
be collateralized in an amount not less than 50% (102% for overnight deposits) of the uninsured
balance. Market values of all cash and deposits approximate the cost of those assets.

Depository Accounts (bank balances)

Insured $ 1,126,531
Collateral held by pledging bank's trust
department not in the Authority’s name 4,128,169
Uninsured and uncollateralized -
Total deposits ~$ 5,254,700

Interest Rate Risk. The Authority’s investment policy requires investment maturities to be scheduled
to meet projected cash flow.

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
Authority’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Authority does not have a deposit policy for
custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2014, $4,128,169 of the Authority's bank balance of $5,254,700
was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized $ -
Uninsured and collateral held by pledging bank's trust

department not in the Authority's name 4,128,169

Total $ 4,128,169

The Authority has multiple accounts with Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. These accounts are in money
market funds that are only invested in United States Treasury Bills. The risk of loss on these accounts
is only if the United States of America were to default on the Treasury Bills. These accounts are not
subject to custodial credit risk. The total funds held at Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. were $1,755,710
on June 30, 2014.

-11-



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Authority’s funds shall be invested in accordance with New Mexico Statute 6-10-36. Funds that
are declared excess due to the inability of local financial institutions to accept these deposits may be
invested in U.S. government securities, or as otherwise provided bylaw. The Authority will diversify
use of investment instruments to avoid incurring unreasonable risks inherent to over-investing in

specific instruments, individual financial institutions or maturities.

NOTE 4. TENANT RECEIVABLE

The Authority has a policy of allowing for all tenant receivables that are from participants that are no
longer in the program. Tenant receivables are considered past due after 30 days. Interest is not
accrued on past-due receivables. The tenant receivable and allowance for each fund are as follows:

Tenant Net Tenant
Receivable Allowance  Receivable
Housing Authority $328,670  $199,027 $129,643
SF Housing Development Corp 2,065 - 2,065
Cielo Azul 842 - 842
La Cieneguita 1 - 1
Total tenant receivables $331.578 $1 99,027 $132.551

NOTES5. INTERFUND ACTIVITY

The cofnpositions of interfund balances as of June 30, 2013, are as follows:

Receivable
Fund Amount Fund Amount
Current

Housing Authority 3 97,744 Housing Development Corp. 3
Housing Authority 99,333 La Cieneguita
Housing Authority 94,991 Section 8 Voucher
Housing Authority 350,903 Cielo Azul
Total current 642,971 Total current

Non Current
Housing Development Corp. 500,000 Cielo Azul

:) 1,785,942 S 1,785,942

The interfund balances are related to various deposits and disbursements made into or from the general

bank account in which the activity is related to a different fund.

-12-



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 6. RELATED PARTY BALANCES

The Authority assisted in the establishment and has ownership in the following tax exempt entities:

ENTITY Ownership
RAD Santa Fe, LLC 100%
RAD Espanola, LLC 100%
RAD Bernalillo, LL.C 100%
Camino Alegria 0.001%
Villa Alegre Family 0.001%
Villa Alegre Senior 0.001%

The RAD titled entities have a sole member (SFCHA) with a managing member (the SFCHA
Executive Director). The SFCHA Executive Director is the Treasurer on the Casas Board. Campo
Alegria, Villa Alegre Family and Villa Alegre Senior are LIHTC developments with SFCHA the
managing General Partner.

Receivables due from these organizations are as follows:

Other Receivables
Santa Fe Housing
RAD Santa Fe, LLC $ 163,386
RAD Espanola, LLC . 53,654
RAD Bernalillo, LLC 28,988
Camino Campo 180,000
Espanola Housing
RAD Santa Fe : 42,687
SF Housing Development Corporation
Villa Alegre Family 363,820
Cielo Azul
RAD Bemalillo, LLC : 868,550
RAD Espanola, LLC 400,300
RAD Santa Fe, LLC 511,680
Total other receivables $  2.613,065

Notes Receivable — long term

Santa Fe Housing
Villa Alegre Family $ 476,974
Villa Alegre Senior 3,497,750
Cielo Azul
Camino Campo 455,560
Total notes receivable — long term $ 4430284

-13-



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 6. RELATED PARTY BALANCES (CONTINUED)

The notes due from Villa Alegre Family and Villa Alegre Senior are interest free notes. The notes are
paid with excess cash flows from the respective entity. Any remaining balanceis due onJune 30, 2042.

The note due from Camino Campo carries interest at 6%. Annual interest payments are required.
Principal balances are paid from the excess cash flows. Any remaining balance is due on June 30,
2042.

Payables due to these organizations are as follows:
Notes Payable (see Note 8)
Cielo Azul
Casas Buena Ventura $ 200,000

NOTE 7. CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 was as follows:

Beginning Additions/ Ending
Balance Transfers In  Deletions Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land § 1,142,589 $ 32,000 §$ - $ 1,174,589
Construction in progress - 216,875 - 216,875
Total 1,142,589 248,875 - 1,391,464
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 36,520,555 2,539,783 - 39,060,338
Furniture and fixtures 882,914 - - 882,914
Machinery and equipment 127,486 109,478 - 236,964
Vehicles 438,601 - - 438,601
Total 37,969,556 2,649,261 - 40,618,817
Less accurnulated depreciation 24,581,962 1,451,831 - 26,033,793
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 13,387,594 1,197,430 - 14,585,024
Total capital assets $ 14,530,183 § 1,446,305 § - $ 15,976,488

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2014, totaled $1,342,353. The entire amount has been
included in the Statement of Activities as a Housing Program expenditure.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 7. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The capital assets from the Bernalillo Housing Authority have been included as part of transfers in.

Buildings and improvements of $2,468,000 and machinery and equipment of $109,478 has been
included. The machinery and equipment were considered to be fully depreciated and $109,478 of
accumulated depreciation has been included as part of the transfer in. Due to an impairment analysis
(See Note 13) on the buildings and improvements, buildings and improvements had no accumulated

depreciation included as part of the transfer in.

Construction Commitments

The Authority has active construction projects as of June 30, 2014.

NOTE 8. LONG-TERM DEBT

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities. During the year ended June 30, 2014, the following changes

occurred in liabilities reported in the general long-term debt account group:

Balance Balance Due Within
6/30/2013 Additions Deletions 06/30/2014 One Year

Notes payable $ 3,814,054 $ - 8 (91,898) $ 3,722,156 $ 296,411
Compensated absences 241,352 241,547 (241,352) 241,547 241,547
Total $ 4,055,406 $ 241547 § (333,250) § 3,963,703 § 537,958

For the year ended June 30, 2014, the Authority incurred $159,618 of interest expense that has been
included in the Statement of Activities as a Housing Program expenditure.

~ Notes Payable

The Housing Authority entered into a loan with Casas De Buena Ventura for the purposes of paying
off a loan to the Church of Holy Faith in the amount of $200,000 on November 1, 2009. The note has
an interest rate of 1% per annum and secured by real property. The note has a current maturity date of
November 1, 2015, with the option to extend the note for an additional five years at the discretion of
the Authority. The Authority may extend the principal balance of the note for an additional five years
for a maximum of five extensions. At any time the note can be forgiven by Casas De Buena Ventura
and treated as an advanced charitable contribution.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 8. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The Housing Authority assumed a $109,620 note with MFA upon being granted ownership of Region
IT Vouchers. The note has an interest rate of 5.0%, secured by real property and with a maturity date
of December 2021. The balance of the note as of June 30, 2014 is $69,858.

The Housing Authority entered into a commercial mortgage with a Los Alamos National Bank, for the
purpose of paying off the SFHDC 1993 A Bonds and the $200,000 commercial renovation note for
$2,780,000 at 4.25% interest, secured by real property, and with a maturity date of October 15, 2024,
and has monthly payments of $13,676. The balance of the note as of June 30, 2014, is $2,543,129.

The Housing Authority assumed a $390,000 note with MFA, for the purpose of rehabilitating or
constructing La Resolana units. The note has an interest rate of 3.0%, secured by real property, and with
a maturity date of June 17, 2028. The balance of the note as of June 30, 2014, is $310,441.

The Housing Authority entered into a note, a commercial mortgage with a bank, for the purpose of
acquiring the Cielo Azul property for $700,000 at 6% interest, secured by real property, and with a
maturity date of October 2034, secured by property. The balance of the note as of June 30, 2014, is
$598,728.

Total aggregate maturing of the notes payable at. June 30, 2014, is as follows:

Commercial Mortgage Commercial Mortgage
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest

2015 $ 14,732  $ 35,634 $ 57,135 § 106,977
2016 15,641 34,725 : 59,611 104,501
2017 16,605 33,760 62,194 101,918
2018 17,630 32,736 64,890 99,222
2019 18,717 31,649 67,702 96,410
2020-2024 112,393 139,436 385,147 435,413
2025-2029 151,601 100,228 1,846,451 26,006
2030-2034 204,488 47,341 - -
2035-2036 46,921 1,599 - -

$ 598,728 $ 457,108 $ 2,543,130 § 970,447
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2014

NOTE 8. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Casas Note
Year Principal Interest

2015 $ 200,000 $ - 3
2016 - -
2017 - -
2018 - -
2019 - -
2020-2024 - -
2025-2029 - -
2030-2034 - -
2035-2036 , - -

$ 200,000 $ -

MFA Note 2
Year Principal Interest

2015 $ 16,720 $ 9,236 §
2016 17,234 8,722
2017 17,764 8,193
2018 18,308 7,648
2019 18,871 7,085
2020-2024 103,410 26,370
2025-2029 118,135 9,488
2030-2034 - -
2035-2036 - -

$ 310,442 $ 76,742

NOTE 9.

Pension Plan-Public Employees’ Retirement

Plan Description. Substantially all of the Authority’s full-time employees participate in a public
employee retirement system authorized under the Public Employees Retirement Act (Chapter 10, Article
11, NMSA 1978). In accordance with Chapter 10, Article 11, Section 5 NMSA 1978, the Authority has
elected to make a percentage of the employees’ contributions.
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MFA Note 1

Principal Interest
7,824 § 3,292
8,224 2,892
8,645 2,471
9,087 2,029
9,552 2,029
26,526 1,719
69,858 $ 14,432

Total Notes

Principal Interest
296,411 $ 155,139
100,710 150,840
105,208 146,342
109,915 141,635
114,841 136,708
627,475 602,939
2,116,187 135,721
204,488 47,341
46,921 1,599
3,722,156 $ 1,518,264

PENSION PLAN AND POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Public Employees Retirement



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2014

NOTE 9. PENSION PLAN AND POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Association (PERA) is the administrator of the plan, which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit retirement plan. The plan provides for retirement benefits, disability benefits, survivor benefits
and cost-of-living adjustments to plan members and beneficiaries. PERA issues a separate, publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
the plan. That report may be obtained by writing to PERA, P.O. Box 2123, Santa Fe, NM 87504-2123.
The report is also available on PERA’s website at www.pera.state.nm.us.

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute 14.65% of their gross salary. The Authority
is required to contribute 9.15% of the gross covered salary. The contribution requirements of plan
members and the Authority are established in State statute under Chapter 10, Article 11, NMSA 1978.
The requirements may be amended by acts of the Legislature. The Authority’s contributions to PERA
for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $148,404, $137,388, and $118,974,
respectively, which equal the amount of the required contributions for each fiscal year.

Post-employment Benefits — State Retiree Health Care Plan

Plan Description. The Authority contributes to the New Mexico Retiree Health Care Fund, a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit post-employment health care plan administered by the New
Mexico Retiree Health Care Authority (RHCA). The RHCA provides health care insurance and
prescription drug benefits to retired employees of participating New Mexico government agencies, their
spouses, dependents, and surviving spouses and dependents. The RHCA Board was established by the
Retiree Health Care Act (Chapter 10, Article 7C, NMSA 1978). The Board is responsible for
establishing and amending benefit provisions of the health care plan and is also authorized to designate
optional and/or voluntary benefits like dental, vision, supplemental life insurance, and long-term care
policies. ‘

Eligible retirees are: 1) retirees who make contributions to the fund for at least five years prior to
retirement and whose eligible employer during that period of time made contributions as a participant
in the RHCA plan on the person’s behalf unless that person retires before the employer’s RHCA
effective date, in which the event the time period required for employee and employer contributions shall
become the period of time between the employer’s effective date and the date of retirement; 2) retirees
defined by the Act who retired prior to July 1, 1990; 3) former legislators who served at least two years;
and 4) former governing authority members who served at least four years.

The RHCA issues a publicly available stand-alone financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the post-employment health care plan. That report and further
information can be obtained by writing to the Retiree Health Care Authority at 4308 Carlisle NE, Suite
104, Albuquerque, NM 87107.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 9. PENSION PLAN AND POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Post-employment Benefits — State Retiree Health Care Plan

Funding Policy. The Retiree Health Care Act (Section 10-7C-13 NMSA 1978) authorizes the RHCA
Board to establish the monthly premium contributions that retirees are required to pay for health care
benefits. Each participating retiree pays a monthly premium according to a service based subsidy rate
schedule for the medical plus basic life plan plus an additional participation fee of five dollars if the
eligible participant retired prior to the employer’s RHCA effective date or is a former legislator or former
governing authority member. Former legislators and governing authority members are required to pay
100% of the insurance premium to cover their claims and the administrative expenses of the plan. The
monthly premium rate schedule can be obtained from the RHCA or viewed on their website at
www.nmrhca.state.nm.us.

The employer, employee and retiree contributions are required to be remitted to the RHCA on amonthly
basis. The statutory requirements for the employer and employee contributions can be changed by the
New Mexico State Legislature. Employers that choose to become participating employers after January
1, 1998, are required to make contributions to the RHCA fund in the amount determined to be
appropriate by the board. . :

The Retiree Health Care Act (Section 10-7C-15 NMSA 1978) is the statutory authority that establishes
the required contributions of participating employers and their employees. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2014, the statute requires each participating employer to contribute 2.5% of each participating
employee’s annual salary; each participating employee is required to contribute 1.25% of their salary.
For employees that were not members of an enhanced retirement plan during the fiscal year ended June
30, 2014, the statute required each participating employer to contribute 2% of each participating
employee’s annual salary; each participating employee was required to contribute 1% of their salary.
In addition, pursuant to Section 10-7C-15(G) NMSA 1978, at the first session of the Legislature
following July 1, 2013, the legislature shall review and adjust the distributions pursuant to Section
7-1-6.1 NMSA 1978 and the employer and employee contributions to the authority in order to
ensure the actuarial soundness of the benefits provided under the Retiree Health Care Act.

The Authority's contributions to the RHCA for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012 were
$30,906, $30,030, and $ 23,847, respectively, which equal the required contributions for each year.

NOTE 10. CONTINGENCIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which
may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the Authority expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 10. CONTINGENCIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Authority is involved in various legal actions arising from the ordinary course of operations. With
respect to these actions, their counsel believes the outcome will not have a material adverse effect on
the Authority’s financial position. The Authority mitigates the risk of loss by purchasing commercial
insurance. The Authority has the following policies:

Worker’s Compensation

Property

General Liability

Auto Liability

Employee Theft/Dishonesty/Crime Blanket Coverage
Director’s Liability Coverage

Civil Rights

The Authority has not had any claims for which the settlement amount exceeded the insurance coverage
during the past three years. However, should a claim be filed against the Authority which exceeds the
insurance coverage, the Authority would be responsible for a loss in excess of the coverage amounts.
There has not been any significant change in coverage from the previous years.

NOTE 11. BUDGET DEFICIT

Actual expenses exceeded budgeted expenses for the Espanola Housing Authority by $214,174. The
Authority was able to make up the shortfall by using cash that existed in each fund.

NOTE 12. SUBSEQUENT ACCOUNTING STANDARD PRONOUNCEMENTS

Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The statement replaces the
requirements of GASBS 27. Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers, and
the requirements of GASBS 50 Pension Disclosures, as they related to pensions that are provided
through pension plans administered as trusts. The requirements of Statements 27 and 50 remain
applicable for pensions that are covered by GASBS 68. This statement is effective for financial
statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014. This will require the Authority to recognize
a liability for the proportionate share of the unfunded net pension liability for PERA.

Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations. This statement
establishes accounting and financial reporting standards related to government mergers, acquisitions,
and transfers of operations. The requirements of this Statement are effective for government
combinations and disposals of government operations occurring in financial reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2013 (year ended June 30, 2015) and should be applied on a prospective basis.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 12. SUBSEQUENT ACCOUNTING STANDARD PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONT’D)

Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Financial Guarantees. This
statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for financial guarantees that are non-
exchange transactions extended or received by a state or local government. A non-exchange financial
guarantee is a guarantee of an obligation of a legally separate entity or individual, including a blended
or discretely presented component unit, which requires the guarantor to indemnify a third-party
obligation holder under specified conditions. This statement is effective for financial statements for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2013. The Authority has reviewed the statement and has
determined that this does not apply to the Authority.

GASB 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date
(Amendment to GASB 68), improve accounting and financial reporting by addressing an issue in
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, concerning transition provisions
related to certain pension contributions made to defined benefit pension plans prior to implementation
of that Statement by employers and nonemployer contributing entities. This Statement will be effective
at the implementation of GASB 68.

NOTE 13. BERNALILLO HOUSING AUTHORITY AND SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Effective July 1,2013, Town of Bernalillo Housing Authority was transferred to Santa Fe Civic Housing
Authority and the Authority early implemented GASB 69 -” Government Combinations and Disposals
of Government Operations, as it related to the combination/merger of a government. All operations of
the Town of Bernalillo Housing Authority are included as part of the Authority for the year ending
June 30,2014. For the year ended June 30,2013, the Bernalillo Housing Authority received a disclaimer
opinion over its financial statements. However, as part of activity in fiscal year 2014, many of the
balance sheet accounts, including cash, receivables, payables and respective liability accounts were
determined to be correct.

The Authority was unable to obtain sufficient evidence as to the cost basis of the buildings and
improvements it obtained from Bernalillo. However, GASB 69 states that as part of the combination,
the Authority should complete an impairment analysis. Subsequent to year end, on July 14, 2014, all
the land and buildings and improvements were sold for a price of $2,500,000 to a related not for profit
for the purposes of redevelopment and utilizing housing tax credits. Therefore, as part of the impairment
analysis and determining the lower of cost or market, management has elected to include the land and
buildings and improvements with a total value of $2,500,000 as of the combination date of July 1,2013.
It was determined that the vehicles, furniture and equipment should be fully depreciated, and therefore,
has been included on the Authority’s records as fully depreciated.
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Statement 1
STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
PUBLIC HOUSING COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
June 30, 2014
Santa Fe Bernalillo Espanola
Housing Housing Housing
Authority Authority Authority Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash, investments and equivalents 3 1,352,322 § 305,708 §$ 209,164 §$ 1,867,194
Tenant receivable 108,115 6,333 15,195 129,643
Federal grants receivable - - - -
Other receivables - related parties 426,028 - 42,687 468,715
Other receivables - - - -
Due from other funds 642,971 - - 642,971
Due from Bernalillo - - - -
Prepaid expenses 24,682 3,896 8,115 36,693
Inventory - - - -
Cash, investments and equivalents - restricted 159,365 4,166 29,832 193,363
Total current assets 2,713,483 320,103 304,993 3,338,579
Capital Assets '
Land 22,200 32,000 277,437 331,637
Construction in progress 36,152 - - 36,152
Buildings and improvements 17,159,612 2,468,000 12,800,946 32,428,558
Furniture and fixtures 43,183 - 639,153 682,336
Machinery and equipment 120,164 109,478 - 229,642
Vehicles 281,533 - 157,068 438,601
Accumulated depreciation (12,828,527) (234,478) (8,352,404) (21,415,409)
Total capital assets ]
(net of depreciation) 4,834,317 2,375,000 5,522,200 12,731,517
Other Assets
Long term receivables 3,974,724 - - 3,974,724
Total assets 3 11,522,524 § 2,695,103 8 5827,193 § 20,044,820
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - 8 - 3 - $ -
Tenant security deposits 45,319 4,166 29,832 79,317
Compensated absences payable 213,307 12,981 15,259 241,547
Accrued liabilities 142,107 - - 142,107
Notes payable - - - -
Escrows and deposits 114,046 - - 114,046
_ Due to Espanola 85,381 (27,800) (57,581) -
Unearned revenue - - - -
Accrued interest - - . .
Total current liabilities 600,160 (10,653) (12,490) 577,017
Noncurrent Liabilities
Bonds payable - - - .
Notes payable - - - R
Due to other funds - - - R
Total noncurrent liabilities - - - -
Total liabilities 5 600,160 $ (10,653) § (12,490) $ 577,017
NET POSITION
Net invested in capital assets $ 4,834,317 $ 2,375,000 § 5,522,200 § 12,731,517
Unrestricted 6,088,047 330,756 317,483 6,736,286
Total net position $ 10,922,364 $ 2,705,756 $ 5,839,683 §$ 19,467,803

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement 2
STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
PUBLIC HOUSING COMBINING STATEMENT
OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2014
Santa Fe Bernalillo Espanola
Housing Housing Housing
Authority Authority Authority Total
Operating Revenues
Facilities rentals 3 970,158 § 174533 § 198,841 $§ 1,343,532
HUD grant and subsidy 946,885 256,930 470,736 1,674,551
Other revenue 73,466 60 - 73,526
Total operating revenues 1,990,509 431,523 669,577 3,091,609
'Operating Expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits 426,322 122,913 380,009 929,244
Community welfare 150,387 - - 150,387
Contractual services and utilities 497,787 84,764 66,547 649,098
Repairs and maintenance 467,742 63,197 76,748 607,687
Depreciation expense 579,602 125,000 426,916 1,131,518
Insurance 73,363 16,448 54,496 144,307
Other 11,340 5,172 958 17,470
Total operating expenses 2,206,543 417,494 1,005,674 3,629,711
Operating loss (216,034) 14,029 (336,097) (538,102)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest on investments 347 - 49 396
Interest expense - - - -
State grant - - - .
Loss on disposition of assets - - - -
Operating transfers in - - - -
Operating transfers out - - - -
Total nonoperating revenues 347 - 49 396
Income (loss) before contributions and
transfers (215,687) 14,029 (336,048) (537,706)
Equity transfers - 2,691,727 - 2,691,727
Change in net position (215,687) 2,705,756 (336,048) 2,154,021
Net position beginning of year 11,138,051 - 6,175,731 17,313,782
Net position, end of year $ 10922364 $ 2705756 $ 5,839,683 $ 19,467,803

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
PUBLIC HOUSING COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2014

Statement 3

Santa Fe Bernalillo Espanela
Housing Housing Housing
Authority Aautherity Authority Total
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers and grantors $ 2634341 § 441,761 3 679,109 § 3,755211
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (1,205,100) (226,928) (205,424) (1,637,452)
Cash payments to employees for services (432,520) (114,801) (386,597) (933,918)
Net cash provided (used) by eperating activities 996,721 100,032 87,088 1,183,841
Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities
Insurance reimbursement - - - -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (36,152) - (71,783) (107,935)
Net cash used by financing activities (36,152) - (71,783) (107,935)
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Residual equity transfer - 96,270 - 96,270
Proceeds from long-term debt - - - -
Principal paid on debt maturities - - - -
Interest paid on debt - - - -
- 96,270 - 96,270
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Praceeds from state grants - - - -
Interest and dividends on investments 347 - 49 396
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 347 - 49 396
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 960,916 196,302 15,354 1,172,572
Cash investments and cash equivalents :

. at beginning of year 550,771 113,572 223,642 887,985
Cash investments and cash equivalents at end of year $ 151 1,6§7 8 309,874 § 23899 $ 2,060,557
Reconciliation of operating loss to net

cash provided by operating activities

Operating loss $ (216,034) $ 14029 $  (336,097) $ (538,102)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to
net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation/amortization 579,602 125,000 426,916 1,131,518
Construction in progress not capitalized 13,456 - - 13,456
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 754919 9,047 6,791 770,757
Prepaid expenses (8,980) 4,392 (2,943) (7,531)
Due from other funds (260,066) (27,800) (3,732) (291,598)
Other current assets 97,863 3,950 - 101,813
Accounts payable 23,851 (30,117) - (6,266)
Accrued interest - - . .
Escrow and deposits - - - -
Compensated absences payable (6,198) (3,822) (6,588) (16,608)
Deposits (13,224) (2,759) 2,741 (13,242)
Due to other funds 31,532 - - 31,532
Due to HUD - - - .
Unearned revenues - 8,112 - 8,112
Total adjustments 1,212,755 86,003 423,185 1,721,943
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 996,721 § 100,032 § 87,088 % 1,183,841

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

Statement 4

CHANGES IN NET POSITION (BUDGET TO ACTUAL) -

Operating Revenues
Facilities rentals
HUD grants and subsidy
Other operating revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Operating
Community welfare
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
General
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
State grants
Interest expense
Interest on investments
Insurance reimbursement

Total nonoperating revenues
Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, June 30, 2014

SANTA FE HOUSING AUTHORITY

Year Ended June 30, 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Annual Budget Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual Amount (Unfavorable)

940,000 $ 940,000 § 970,158 § 30,158
900,000 900,000 946,885 46,885
78,000 78,000 73,466 (4,534)
1,918,000 1,918,000 1,990,509 72,509
365,000 350,000 426,322 (76,322)
208,000 238,000 150,387 87,613
385,000 480,000 497,787 (17,787)
790,000 1,065,000 467,742 597,258
370,000 400,000 84,703 - 315,297
1,400,000 1,400,000 579,602 820,398
3,518,000 3,933,000 2,206,543 1,726,457
(1,600,000) (2,015,000) (216,034) 1,798,966
(6,000) {6,000) - 6,000
17,000 17,000 347 (16,653)
11,000 11,000 347 (10,653)
(1,589,000) (2,004,000) (215,687) 1,788,313
11,138,051 11,138,051 11,138,051 -
9,549,051 § 9,134,051 § 10,922,364 § 1,788,313

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (BUDGET TO ACTUAL) -
BERNALILLO HOUSING AUTHORITY

Operating Revenues
Facilities rentals
HUD grants and subsidy
Other operating revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Operating
Community welfare
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
General
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Interest on investments
Insurance reimbursement

Total nonoperating revenues

Income (loss) before contributions and
transfers

Equity transfers
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, June 30, 2014

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Statement 5

Year Ended June 30,2014

Variance with

Final Budget -

Budget Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual Amount  (Unfavorable)
$ 160,600 $ 180,600 $ 174,533 § (6,067)
260,000 200,000 256,930 56,930 .

6,000 6,000 60 (5,940)

426,600 386,600 431,523 44923
112,000 75,000 122,913 (47,913)

97,000 97,000 84,764 12,236

155,000 110,000 63,197 46,803

72,000 69,000 - 21,620 47,380
70,000 70,000 125,000 (55,000)

506,000 421,000 417,494 3,506
(79,400) (34,400) 14,029 48,429
(79,400) (34,400) - 14,029 48,429

- - 2,691,727 2,691,727

(79,400) (34,400) 2,705,756 2,740,156
1,935,627 1,935,627 - (1,935,627)

$ 1,856,227 § 1,901,227 $ 2,705,756 $ 804,529
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (BUDGET TO ACTUAL) -
ESPANOLA HOUSING AUTHORITY

Statement 6

Year Ended June 30, 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budget Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual Amount (Unfavorable)
Operating Revenues
Facilities rentals $ 250,000 $ 250,000 198,841 § (51,159)
HUD grants and subsidy 570,000 460,000 470,736 10,736
Other operating revenues 5,000 5,000 - (5,000)
Total operating revenues 825,000 715,000 669,577 (45,423)
Operating Expenses
Operating 207,500 197,500 380,009 (182,509)
Community welfare - - - -
Utilities 81,000 61,000 66,547 (5,547)
Repairs and maintenance 398,000 268,000 76,748 191,252
General 148,000 180,000 55,454 124,546
Depreciation 85,000 85,000 426,916 (341,916)
Total operating expenses 919,500 791,500 1,005,674 (214,174)
Operating income (loss) (94,500) (76,500) (336,097) (259,597)
Nonoperaﬁng Revenues (Expenses)
Operating transfers in - - - -
Operating transfers out - - - -
Interest on investments 5,000 5,000 49 (4,951)
Insurance reimbursement - - - -
Total nonoperating revenues 5,000 5,000 49 (4,951)
Change in net position (89,500) (71,500) (336,048) (264,548)
Net position, beginning of year 6,175,731 6,175,731 6,175,731 -
Net position, June 30, 2014 $ 6,086231 $ 6,104,231 5,839,683 $ (264,548)

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement 7
STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (BUDGET TO ACTUAL) -
SANTA FE SECTION 8 VOUCHER

Year Ended June 30, 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budget Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual Amount (Unfavorable)
Operating Revenues
' Intergovernmental $ 7,070,000 $ 7,070,000 $ 6,047,331 § (1,022,669)

Port-in HAP reimbursement 700,000 700,000 1,079,056 379,056

Port-admin fees 60,000 60,000 69,358 9,358

TBRA revenues 35,000 35,000 3,544 (31,456)

Other revenue): 12,000 12,000 95 (11,905)
Total operating revenues 7,877,000 7,877,000 7,199,384 (677,616)

Operating Expenses

Community welfare 6,998,000 7,198,000 6,853,293 344,707

Port HAP 700,000 700,000 1,066,835 (366,835)

TBRA expenses 35,000 35,000 - 35,000
Total operating expenses 7,733,000 7,933,000 7,920,128 12,872
Operating income 144,000 (56,000) (720,744) (664,744)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Interest income 5,000 5,000 13 (4,987)
Total nonoperating revenues 5,000 5,000 13 (4,987)
Change in net position 149,000 (51,000} (720,731) (669,731)

Net position, beginning of year 2,276,027 2,276,027 2,276,027 -
Net position, June 30, 2014 $ 2,425,027 § 2,225,027 § 1,555,296 $ (669,731)

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

.28-



Statement 8
STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (BUDGET TO ACTUAL) -
SANTA FE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Year Ended June 30,2014

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budget Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual Amount  (Unfavorable)
Operating Revenues
Facilities rentals $ 780,000 §$ 800,000 $ 760,138 $ (39,862)
Other operating revenues 24,000 24,000 100 (23,900)
Total operating revenues 804,000 824,000 760,238 (63,762)
" Operating Expenses
Operating 141,600 161,600 207,579 (45,979)
Contractual services and utilities 104,000 96,000 85,170 10,830
Repairs and maintenance 405,000 245,000 73,576 171,424
General 86,000 110,000 19,237 90,763
Depreciation - 310,000 310,000 98,442 211,558
Total operating expenses 1,046,600 922,600 484,004 438,596
Operating income (loss) (242,600) (98,600) 276,234 374,834
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest on investments - 8,000 8,000 803 (7,197)
Interest expense (180,000) (180,000) (118,937) 61,063
Total nonoperating expenses (172,000) {172,000) (118,134) 53,866
Change in net position (414,600) (270,600) 158,100 428,700
Net position, beginning of year (as reported) 700,245 700,245 700,245 -
Restatement:
Change in reporting for deferred charges
for loan issuance costs - - (64,641) (64,641)
Net position, beginning of year, A
(as restated) 700,245 700,245 635,604 (64,641)
Net position, June 30, 2014 $ 285,645 $§ 429,645 § 793,704 $ 364,059

The Notes to the Financia! Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (BUDGET TO ACTUAL) -
CIELO AZUL
Year Ended Ended June 30, 2014

N

Statement 9

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budget Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual Amount  (Unfavorable)
Operating Revenues
Facilities rentals $ 160,000 $ 160,000 $ 160,884 $ 884
Development activities 1,200,000 1,200,000 380,833 (819,167)
Other operating revenues 10,000 10,000 215,773 205,773
Total operating revenues 1,370,000 1,370,000 757,490 (612,510)
Operating Expenses
Operating 142,000 212,000 305,904 (93,904)
Contractual services and utilities 17,500 17,500 11,559 5,941
Repairs and maintenance 178,000 178,000 45,307 132,693
General 6,000 6,000 6,548 (548)
Insurance 8,000 8,000 6,483 1,517
Depreciation » 70,000 70,000 48317 21,683
Total operating expenses 421,500 491,500 424,118 67,382
Operating income 948,500 878,500 333,372 (545,128)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Transfers in - - - -
Interest on investments - - 34,256 34,256
Interest expense (130,000) (130,000) (40,681) 89,319
Total nonoperating expenses {130,000) {130,000) (6,425) 123,575
Change in net position 818,500 748,500 326,947 (421,553)
Net position, beginning of year 2,311,707 2,311,707 2,311,707 -
Net position, June 30, 2014 $ 3,130,207 $ 3,060207 $ 2,638,654 § (421,553)

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement 10
STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (BUDGET TO ACTUAL) -

LA CIENEGUITA
Year Ended June 30, 2014
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budget Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual Amount (Unfavorable)
Operating Revenues
Facilities rentals $ 140,000 $ 190,000 $ 191,490 1,490
Other operating revenues 100 100 60 (40)
Total operating revenues 140,100 190,100 191,550 1,450
Operating Expenses
Operating 105,000 105,000 102,345 2,655
Community welfare 1,800 1,800 - 1,800
Contractual services and utilities 24,000 24,000 25,790 (1,790)
Repairs and maintenance 110,200 110,200 30,137 80,063
Depreciation 70,000 70,000 64,076 5,924
General 7,000 7,000 7,216 (216)
Total operating expenses 318,000 318,000 229,564 88,436
Operating loss (177,900) (127,900) (38,014) 89,886
Nonoperating Revenues
Operating transfers out - - - -
Interest on investments 1,000 1,000 101 (899)
Change in net position (176,900) (126,900) (37,913) 88,987
Net position, beginning of year 1,270,356 1,270,356 1,270,356 -
Net position, June 30, 2014 $ 1093456 § 1,143456 $ 1,232,443 $ 88,987

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Schedule 1
STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
(RECONCILIATION OF BANK BALANCE TO CARRYING BALANCE)
ALL FUNDS
June 30,2014

Bank Outstanding Deposits Carrying
Type of Account Balance Checks in Transit Balance Fair Value
Change, imprest funds Petty Cash $ -3 -3 -3 -8 -
Deposits with financial institutions: '
NM Bank & Trust
Operating (La Cienegnita) Checking 99,084 3,845 - 95,239 95,239
Operating (Espanola) Checking 206,277 7,326 - 198,951 198,951
Security Deposits (Espanola) Checking 39,314 43 - 39,271 39,271
Operating (Camino Consuelo) Savings 275,803 - - 275,803 275,803
Market max 757 (La Ciencgnita), Savings 12,541 150 - 12,391 12,391
Market max 765 (La Cieneguita) Savings 11,358 - - 11,358 11,358
Market max 856 (La Cieneguita) Savings 72,068 - - 72,068 72,068
Market max 864 (La Cieneguita) Savings 5232 - - 5,232 5,232
Savings (Espanola) Savings 774 - - 774 774
US Bank
General Fund Operating Checking 1,207,699 116,795 134,768 1,225,672 1,225,672
Operating (Voucher) Checking 1,626,925 6,229 - 1,620,696 1,620,696
FSS Escrow (Voucher) Checking 101,154 - - 101,154 101,154
Bemalillo Operating Checking © 303,013 5,073 - 297,940 297,940
Bemalillo FSS Checking 996 - - 996 996
Bemalillo Security Deposit Checking 10,938 - - 10,938 10,938
FSB Reserve (Operating) Savings 78,746 - - 78,746 78,746
Los Alamos National Bank
Operating (SF Hsg Dev Corp) Checking 520,596 - 8,897 - 511,699 511,699
Security Deposit (SF Hsg Dev Corp) Checking 5,270 305 - 4,965 4,965
Operating (Cielo Azul) Checking 111,033 61,220 - 49,813 49,813
Security Deposit (Operating) Checking 29,697 164 - 29,533 29,533
Employee Fund (Cielo Azul) Checking 1,975 - - 1,975 1,975
Development Account (Cielo Azul) Checking 306,027 3,476 - 302,551 302,551
Security Deposits (Cielo Azul) Checking 2,153 - - 2,153 2,153
TBRA (Voucher)  Checking 59,507 1,180 - 58,327 58,327
FSS PH (Operating) Checking 118,735 600 4,394 122,529 122,529
Board Account (SF Hsg Dev Corp) Savings 19,864 - - 19,864 19,864
Rehabilitation (SF Hsg Dev Corp) Savings 10,942 - - 10,942 10,942
Repair and Replace (SF Hsg Dev Corp) Savings 6,281 - - 6,281 6,281
Debt Service Reserve (SF Hsg Dev Corp) Savings 10,698 - - 10,698 10,698
Total deposits 5,254,700 215,303 139,162 5,178,559 5,178,559
Investments
Charles Schwab
Operating Deposits (Operating) Treasury Bill 55,206 - - 55,206 55,206
Rehabilitation (SF Hsg Dev Corp) Treasury Bill 275,012 : - - 275,012 275,012
Repair and Replace (SF Hsg Dev Corp) Treasury Bill 125,005 - - 125,005 125,005
Debt Service Reserve (SF Hsg Dev Corp) Treasury Bill 160,006 - - 160,006 160,006
Board Account (SF Hsg Dev Corp) Treasury Bill 850,136 - - 850,136 850,136
Security Deposit (SF Hsg Dev Corp) Treasury Bill 15,000 - - 15,000 15,000
Development Account (Cielo Azul) Treasury Bill 270,045 - - 270,045 270,045
Security Deposits (Cielo Azul) Treasury Bill 5,300 - - 5,300 5,300
Total investments 1,755,710 - - 1,755,710 1,755,710
Total petty cash, deposits and investments $ 7010410 $ 215,303 $ 139,162 § 6934269 § 6,934,269
Shown on the Statement of Net Position as:
Cash, investments and equivalents $ 6,610,221
Cash, investments and equivalents - restricted 324,048
Total cash, investments and equivalents $ 6,934,269
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New Mexico Bank & Trust
Checking
Savings
Collateral:
Da Kalb Cnty IIl Unit S GO Sch Bds,
CUSIP 240685HR1, 0.0%, $200,000 face
Eastern NM Ugiv Rev, Cusip 276785UD2
3.8%, $245,000 face

US Bank:
Checking
Savings
Collateral held at FRB Dallas:
FNMA Pool AE5486, Cusip 31419GCY8
3.5%, $6,930,000

FHLMC Gold Pool G11356, Cusip 31283KQH4

3.5%, $2,000,000

FHIMC FGIMC C78550, Cusip 31288HQB9

3.5%, $2,000,000

FHLMC FHARM 787802, Cusip 31295LU34

3.5%, $10,000,000
FNMA FNCL 555647, Cusip 31385XHY6
3.5%, $300,000

Los Alamos National Bank
Checking
Savings
Collateral:
FNMA, Cusip 31398A3G5
1.5%, $2,000,000 face 50% pledge

STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF PLEDGED COLLATERAL

Schedule 2

MARKET VALUE
June 30, 2014
Federal Total Pledged
Maturity Bank Depository Uninsured Required Securities Over/
Date Balance Insurance  Public Funds Collateral  Market Value (Under)
None § 344,675 $ 250,000 $ 94,675 § 47,338 § -8 -
None 371,776 250,000 127,776 63,888 - -
11722 - - - - 158,278
41117 - - - - 249,684 296,737
None 3,250,725 250,000 3,000,725 1,500,363 - -
None 78,746 78,746 - -
10/1/25 - - - - 3,389,737
1/1/18 - - - - 55,577
5/1/33 - - - - 131,168
4/1/30 - - - - 137,718
71/33 - - - - 343,726 2,557,564
None 1,154,993 250,000 904,993 452,497 - -
None 47,785 47,785 - - - -
9/8/14 - - - - 1,002,584 550,088
$ 5254700 $ 1,126,531 § 4,128,169 $ 2,064,085 $ 5,468,472 $ 3,404,388
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Robert J. Rivera, CPA, PC

Certified Public Accountants
6 Calle Medico, Suite 4
(505) 983-6002 Santa Fe, New Mexico 87505-4761 Fax (505) 983-6474

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors -

Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority
and

Mr. Hector H. Balderas

New Mexico State Auditor

Santa Fe, New Mexico

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government A uditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business type
activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information of the Santa Fe Civic Housing
Authority (the Authority), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements, and the
combining and individual funds and related budgetary comparisons presented as supplemental
information and have issued our report thereon dated December 15, 2014,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatcments on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal controls such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timelybasis. A significant deficiencyisa deficiency, or acombination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
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Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal
control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses, that we consider to be
significant deficiencies (Finding 2014 -001, and 2014-004).

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, and Section 12-6-5, NMSA 1978, and
which are described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as Findings
2007-004, 2014-002 and 2014-003. '

The Authority’s Response to Findings

The Authority’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. The Authority’s responses were not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
~ opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

P z&mfc)/ewmx/ CPh, Pe

Robert J. Rivera, CPA, PC
Santa Fe, New Mexico
December 15, 2014
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Robert J. Rivera, CPA, PC

Certified Public Accountants
6 Calle Medico, Suite 4
(505) 983-6002 Santa Fe, New Mexico 87505-4761 Fax (505) 983-6474

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Directors -

Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority
and

Mr. Hector H. Balderas

New Mexico State Auditor

Santa Fe, New Mexico

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the State of New Mexico, Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority’s (the Authority)
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Authority’s major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. The Authority's major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Authority’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, -
Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
Authority's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority's
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2014.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance which are required to be
reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in. the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs of item 2014-003.  Our opinion on each major federal
program is not modified with respect to this matters.

The Authority’s responses to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. The Authority’s responses were not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and , accordingly, we express
no opinion on the responses.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered the Authority’s internal control over compliance with the types
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance s a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal contro] over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we identified
certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance, as described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as item 2014-003, that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

The Authority’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Authority’s response was
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on these responses.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

St fuierarety po

Robert J. Rivera, CPA, PC
Santa Fe, New Mexico
December 15, 2014
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
Year Ended June 30, 2014

2014-004 (2007-04) Budgetary Compliance Updated and included as 2014-04

2012-04 Short Term Waiting List - Compliance Resolved
2013-01 Rent Calculations - Compliance Resolved
2013-02 Eligibility Compliance - Section 8 vouchers Resolved
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2014

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1.

The auditor’s report expresses an unmodified opinion on the basic financial statements
and the combining and individual fund financial statements of the State of New Mexico,
Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority.

One significant deficiency disclosed during the audit of the financial statements is
reported in the Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting, and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No
material weaknesses are reported. '

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the State of New
Mexico, Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, that were disclosed during the audit.

One significant deficiency in internal control over major federal award programs
disclosed during the audit is reported in the Independent Auditor’s Reporton Compliance
for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by OMB
Circular A-133. No material weaknesses are reported. '

The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the State
of New Mexico, Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority expresses an unmodified opinion on
all major federal programs. One instance of noncompliance is reported. Our opinion is
not modified with respect to this matter.

Audit findings relating to major programs that are required to be reported in accordance
with Section 510(2) of OMB Circular A-133 are reported in this schedule.

The programs tested as major programs include the following:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program
14.850 Public Housing Subsidy
14.871 Section 8 Housing

The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.

The Authority was determined to be a high-risk auditee.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2014

B. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

2014-001 Improper Control Over Blank Warrants
(Significant Deficiency)

CONDITION

Blank but signed warrants are kept in a locked filing cabinet in the Accounting Specialist’s office. The
Administrative Supervisor is responsible for processing payments to vendors and for any other purpose
for which a warrant is necessary (except payroll).

CRITERIA

Acceptable internal control over warrants dictates that warrants be signed after completion and that
approval for the payment be indicated on supporting documentation.

CAUSE

The Authority allowed blank but signed warrants to be kept by the Administrative Supervisor.
EFFECT '

Improper and/or unauthorized payments could be made creating a fraud or misappropriation risk.
RECOMMENDATION

We recommend that the Authority sign warrants after they have been completed.

ENTITY RESPONSE

The Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority concurs with the finding, and has implemented actions to correct and or
prevent this recurrence.

-47-



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2014

C. FEDERAL MAJOR AWARD PROGRAMS

2014-003  Improper Allocation of Retirement Contributions
(Significant Deficiency and Noncompliance)

Federal Program:

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Public Housing Subsidy — CFDA 14.850
Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services — CFDA 14.855
Section 8 Housing — CFDA 14.871

Award Period, October 1, 2013 — June 30, 2014
Compliance Requirements: Allowable Costs
Questioned Costs—$29,499

CONDITION

During our testing we noted retirement contributions paid to the New Mexico Public Employee’s
Retirement Association defined benefit plan for six employees were not in accordance with the provisions
of Section 10-11-8 NMSA 1978 (a provision of the Public Employees Retirement Act) for retirees that
return to work with an affiliated employer. Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority (SFCHA) paid both the
employee and employer share of the contribution for the employees since the employee was hired by the
SFCHA. Priorto July1,2010, this practice was in accordance with the Public Employee Retirement Act.
Currently, the SFCHA policy, which is allowed by state law, pays 67% of required employee
contributions as well as 100% of the required employer contribution for all employees (except for the
return-to-work retirees) participating in the defined benefit plan. Except for the six employees, all other
employees contribute 4.80% of their salary to the defined benefit plan.

CRITERIA

Pursuant to paragraph H (1) of Section 10-11-8 NMSA 1978, “A retired member who returned to work
with an affiliated public employer prior to July 1, 2010 shall be subject to the provisions of this section
in effect on the date the retired member returned to work; provided that: (1) on and after July 1, 2010, the
retired member shall pay the employee contribution in an amount specified in the Public Employees
Retirement Act for the position in which the retired member is subsequently employed”.

CAUSE

The SFCHA was not aware of the changes in the Public Employee Retirement Act that became effective
July 1, 2010.

-48-



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2014

C. FEDERAL MAJOR AWARD PROGRAMS (Cont’d)

2014-003 Improper Allocation of Retirement Contributions
(Significant Deficiency and Noncompliance) (Cont’d)

EFFECT

On and after July, 1, 2010, the improper allocation of retirement contributions resulted in the SFCHA
paying more in contributions than that required by law, thus using federal and other program dollars to
make those improper payments.

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend that the Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority make the necessary changes to the payroll
system to withhold the employee retirement contribution as required by the Public Employees Retirement
Act. We further recommend that the SFCHA return the questioned cost amount to the appropriate federal

program.
ENTITY RESPONSE

The Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority concurs with the finding, and has implemented actions to correct and or
prevent this recurrence.
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SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2014

D. COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS FINDINGS

2014-004 (2007-04) Budgetary Compliance - Other (Repeated and Modified)
(Significant Deficiency and Noncompliance)

CONDITION
Actual expenses exceeded budgeted expenses for the Espanola Housing Authority Fund by $214,174

CRITERIA

Per State Auditor Rule 2.2.2.10(P)(1), “If actual expenditures exceed budgeted expenditures at the legal
level of budgetary compliance, that fact must be reported in a finding.”

CAUSE

The Authority recorded $426,916 in depreciation expense, causing the over-expenditure. Budget
adjustments were not made to account for this expense.

EFFECT
The Authority is not in compliance with State Auditor Rule 2.2.2.1 o(P)(1).
RECOMMENDATION

Werecommend that the Authority comply with legal budget requirements as outlined in the State Auditor
Rule.

ENTITY RESPONSE

The Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority concurs with the finding, and has implemented actions to correct and or
prevent this recurrence.
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SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2014

D. COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS FINDINGS (Cont’d)

2014-002 Late Delivery of Audit Report
(Compliance with State Auditor Rules and Regulations)

CONDITION

The Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority did not submit its annual financial report to the State Auditor’s
Office prior to the deadline of September 30, 2014. The report was submitted on December 19, 2014.

CRITERIA

In accordance with State Auditor Rule 2.2.2.9, NMAC, the Authority was required to submit its fiscal
year 2013-2014 annual financial report to the State Auditor’s Office by September 30, 2014.

CAUSE

The Authority prepared their own financial statements this year and provided the auditor’s for review and
finalization. This is the first time that the Authority has prepared its own financial statements which
required additional time and which caused the report to be delivered late. In addition, the audit report
deadline for submission to the State Auditor’s Office has traditionally been November 30", This is the

first year that the deadline was moved up the September 30%.

EFFECT

The Authority was not in compliance with the State Auditor Rule 2.2.2.9, NMAC. Users of the financial
statements (i.e. board members, legislators, creditors, bondholders and state and federal grantors) do not
have timely audit reports and financial statements available for their review.

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend that management develop policies and procedures that ensure financial records are ready
for audit in a timely manner so that future fiscal periods’ financial reports can be submitted prior to the
established deadline.

ENTITY RESPONSE

The Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority concurs with the finding, and has implemented actions to correct and or
prevent this recurrence.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
June 30, 2014

Financial Statement Preparation

The financial statements were prepared by the Authority. Management is responsible for ensuring that
the books and records adequately support the preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and that records are current and in balance. Management has
reviewed and approved the financial statements.

Exit Conference

An exit conference was held on December 16, 2014, to discuss the audit. The following individuals were
in attendance:

State of New Mexico - Santa Fe Civie Housing Authority

Jana Lujan, Board Member

Ed Romero, Executive Director

Rudy Gallegos, Deputy Director

Anna Chavez, Administrative Supervisor
Nellie Olivas, Accountant

Amy Jiminez, Accountant

Herman Chavez, CPA - Contractor

Audit Firm - Robert J. Rivera, CPA, PC

Robert J. Rivera, CPA
William J. Valdes

-52-



TX1R T H

Ay
Audit
City of Santa Fe

Cash - Transit 2014 1 N/A 07/03/2014
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Grand Total 28
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